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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

In 2015, the global economy remained volatile and unstable as it was
faced with a slowing economy and deteriorating financial strengths
in corporates. In addition, increased Renminbi volatility has created
considerable pressure on the domestic economy. Nevertheless, the water
industry maintained consistent growth thanks to increased commitment
to and continued investment in the environmental sector from the Central
Government and society.

In a bid to achieve the environmental targets envisaged under China’s
12th Five-Year Plan (2011-15), investments in the wastewater treatment
sector accelerated. On 1 January 2015, China’s new Environmental
Protection Law was enforced, introducing more stringent requirements
for enterprises, local governments and regulators. On 16 April 2015, the
State Council rolled out the Water Cleanup Action Plan, also known as the
“Ten Rules for Water Pollution Control”, to increase efforts to tackle water
pollution and address China’s water quality needs by introducing rigorous
controls on waste disposal and facilitating economic restructuring.
Meanwhile, it sets higher requirements for wastewater treatment in
urban areas. For example, effluents from wastewater treatment plants in
environmentally sensitive cities and towns have to fully comply with Class
A standards by the end of 2017.

During the year, the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Environmental
Protection jointly issued an opinion paper on advancing water cleanup
and implementing Public-Private-Partnership (PPP) projects with a view
to facilitating partnerships between the public sector and private investors
for wastewater treatment projects, which was of great significance to the
enhancement of quality of public goods and services and the improvement
of water cleanup capabilities and efficiency.
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EFRRE

At present, ELL Environmental has three wastewater treatment facilities
in Jiangsu Province, namely the Haian Hengfa Facility, the Rugao Hengfa
Facility and the Rugao Honghao Facility. They have a maximum capacity
for wastewater treatment totaling 83,500 tonnes per day. Thanks to the
favourable policies initiated by the Central Government and the completion
of the upgrade works to the Rugao Hengfa Facility, a strong engine for
growth, the Group has performed very well throughout the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, ELL Environmental has recorded a
revenue of HK$145.5 million with a year-on-year growth of 70.8%. The
gross profit was HK$50.4 million, up by 5.1% year-on-year. The net profit
was HK$40.1 million, up by 2.6 times year-on-year. Amid the volatile
financial market and RMB depreciation risks, the Group’s prudent financial
policy has maintained a strong financial position successfully.

Looking ahead, on the back of the national environmental strategy, water
businesses are poised to benefit from the rapid pace of urbanisation
and the government’s support to the water industry. The implementation
rules for the “Ten Rules for Water Pollution Control” unveiled last year
are expected to be released this year. The Ministry of Environmental
Protection has recently set higher standards for discharge in the effluents
of wastewater treatment plants, which will push out the underperformers
and reward those able to survive under the new stringent regulations.

Wastewater treatment in Jiangsu province has been the major business
for ELL Environmental. It is the cornerstone of the Group’s development in
the environmental industry, and is a proven success of the Group’s vision
and its commitment in the pursuit of excellence. The Group will continue
to exploit its multi-year industry experience and good relationships with
the local governments to consolidate the position in the market. Despite
having an attractive and stable profitability throughout the years, the Group
has never stopped in exploring new business opportunities to accelerate
the future growth. In the trend of the current global market development
and China’s strategic plans of economic growth in Asia, the Group sees
a huge prospect in other markets, including Indonesia. The Group is
proactive in seeking for further diversity in the environmental protection
businesses that are in line with the corporate value and direction of ELL
Environmental, and is confident in delivering a satisfactory result to the
investors in the near future.
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Here | would like to express my gratitude to the directors and staff for their ~ EULE RIS EE K B TRRKS - KX
diligence and endurance in the challenging year of 2015. | would also like @I AR MKEHNBE —FEEL S
to express my gratitude to the shareholders and clients for their continued A F1E 18 - A ZMEAKRME
trust and support, which are essential for our creative and growth- P ¥ 3 — B 85 E M X 5 R R K -
minded company. In future, the Group will strive to excel in keeping up IR BIFTAIE KAV EEEE ) - K
on the existing business performance as well as delivering a satisfactory 2K © AR& B _E T i # & 7 DAL - FEL
result in business expansion so as to generate attractive returns to our £ Z)5KERBEAMREERFER 5

shareholders. KERRERES AMENEBTELQR -
Chairman EY
Chau On Ta Yuen BAZER
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back into 2015, the overall economic and financial environment
was very challenging as the global markets remained volatile. The PRC
government’s monetary policy was a matter of concern in the market.
The significant depreciation of Renminbi against the US dollars has lifted
investors’ anxieties on the stability of the China market and the future
development of the businesses. In light of the risks and uncertainties in the
market, the Company exercised extra care and prudence in the past year.

The environmental protection industry in China, on the other hand, is
becoming more mature. On 16 April 2015, the State Council introduced
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Action Plan, also known as
the “Ten Rules for Water Pollution Control”, to step up the prevention
and control of water pollution, and to set higher requirements for sewage
treatment in urban areas. To further increase the capacity and efficiency
of water pollution prevention and control, the Ministry of Finance and the
Ministry of Environmental Protection jointly published on 27 April 2015
the “Implementing Opinions on Carrying Out Public-Private-Partnership
in the Field of Water Pollution Prevention and Control” to encourage the
adoption of a public-private-partnership (PPP) model in the sector of
water pollution prevention and control. In October 2015, the State Council
released two documents, which stated that controls on water prices will
be lifted in the future. The documents include “Opinions on Reforms of
the Country’s Pricing Mechanism” and “Guidelines to Push Forward the
Sponge City Campaign”. They aimed to promote better development
of the water treatment supply industry. According to the “Report on the
Analysis of Production and Sales Demand and Investment Forecast in
China’s Sewage Treatment Equipment Industry for 2016-2021” published
by the Research Institute for Prospective Industries, the sewage treatment
industry is still going through a growth period, and that the strong demand
for sewage treatment systems in urban or rural areas, which will foster
the sustainable and rapid development of the industry. This makes the
industry which highly attractive for investment. Therefore, the management
of the Company remains optimistic about the development of the sewage
treatment industry in the future, while expecting the development of more
water treatment projects in the market. The Company will seize more
opportunities in the hope of exploring more areas for business growth.
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Currently, ELL Environmental has three wastewater treatment facilities,
namely the Haian Hengfa Facility, the Rugao Hengfa Facility and the
Rugao Honghao Facility. They have a daily wastewater treatment capacity
of 40,000 tonnes, 40,000 tonnes and 3,500 tonnes respectively. The
upgrade works of Rugao Hengfa Facility was completed in December
2015 and is now undergoing the trial run stage. The negotiation with the
local governments for water tariff adjustment has been carried on since
the completion of the upgrade work of the Haian Hengfa Facility and the
Rugao Hengfa Facility. An increase in water tariff will help further improve
the Group’s profitability.

Upon satisfactory completion and inspection of the environmental
protection at the Rugao Honghao Facility, Rugao Honghao obtained a
permit for sewage discharge on 17 July 2015. Since then, the Group had
been discussing with the Taxation Bureau of Rugao city Rugao Honghao'’s
eligibility for tax exemption. On 30 November 2015, Rugao Honghao
received a letter from the Taxation Bureau of Rugao city, confirming Rugao
Honghao receiving a tax refund of RMB8.1 million (equivalent to HK$10.0
million), equivalent to the amount paid by Rugao Honghao from 2012 to
2014. Meanwhile, the Taxation Bureau confirmed in the refund notification
that Rugao Honghao was entitled to a 50% tax reduction from 2015 to
2017.

On 16 April 2015, the Group entered into a letter of intent with Fujian
Wuping State-Owned Investment Group Co., Ltd. ({8 & ® F & & &
% B A R 2 7l) (“Fujian Wuping”) in relation to the proposed acquisition
of a wastewater treatment facility, namely Wuping Second Waste Water
Treatment Facility (B0 ¥ §2 8 = /5 7K & 22 ) (the “Wuping Facility”).
According to the letter of intent, the Group is expected to work with
Fujian Wuping on a Public-Private Partnership (PPP) model, including
the acquisition of land use and housing rights of Wuping Facility and a
franchise in running the facility, whilst offering technical know-how to
improve the operation of the Wuping Facility.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the increasing challenges and opportunities in the market, the
Company will be prudently optimistic with an aim to maintaining its
excellent business performance and competitiveness. Under the condition
that risks and returns are in line with the Group’s interest, the management
is proactively looking at business expansions within new sewage
treatment projects, as well as other environmental protection projects,
locally and abroad. In the future, new projects or acquisitions will be the
major growth driver for the Company. The Group will make the best of
the advantages from the government policies to formulate appropriate
business development strategies with an aim for a continuous growth for
our shareholders. We expect to fund such new projects and acquisitions
from proceeds from our share offer completed in September 2014 and the
placing of shares completed in May 2015.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue increased by 70.8% to HK$145.5 million for the Year
from HK$85.2 million for the previous year. The increase in revenue was
primarily attributable to the increase in construction revenue arising from
the upgrade works of Rugao Hengfa Facility, which amounted to HK$79.8
million (2014: HK$16.7 million).

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales increased by 155.3% to HK$95.0 million for the
Year from HK$37.2 million for the previous year, primarily due to (i) the
incurrence of total construction costs of HK$60.6 million as a result of
the upgrade works of the Rugao Hengfa Facility during the Year (2014:
HK$14.7 million), and (ii) the increase in overhead costs of HK$11.8 million,
which was mostly attributable to the increased electricity consumption and
raw materials costs due to the increase in volume of wastewater treated.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by 5.1% to HK$50.4 million for the Year from
HK$48.0 million for the previous year, primarily due to the net effect of (i)
the recognition of construction margin as a result of the upgrade works
of the Rugao Hengfa Facility which amounted to HK$19.2 million, and (ii)
the decrease in the operating margin of HK$16.9 million as a result of the
increase in volume of wastewater treated as abovementioned.
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Our gross profit margin decreased to 34.7% for the Year from 56.3%
for the previous year, primarily due to (i) the gross profit margins for the
construction revenue of the upgrade works of the Rugao Hengfa Facility
are lower than the gross profit margins for the operation of our wastewater
treatment facilities, and (ii) the increase in cost of sales with the increase in
volume of wastewater treated as abovementioned.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

As a percentage of our revenue, our administrative expenses represented
12.6% and 36.2% for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Our administrative expenses decreased by 40.7% to
HK$18.3 million for the Year from HK$30.8 million for the previous
year. The decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the absence of the
professional fees of HK$20.1 million incurred in relation to the listing of
our Shares during the year ended 31 December 2014, (i) the increase in
directors’ fees, other office and administrative expenses, and legal and
professional fees in relation to, among other things, regulatory compliance
with the Listing Rules incurred for the Year, and (jii) foreign exchange loss
due to depreciation in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar incurred for the
Year.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by 7.5% to HK$1.25 million for the Year from
HK$1.16 million for the previous year.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax increased by 63.7% to HK$36.2 million for the Year
from HK$22.1 million for the previous year, primarily due to the factors
mentioned above.

INCOME TAX

We recorded an income tax credit of HK$3.9 million for the Year as
compared to an income tax expense of HK$10.9 million for the previous
year, primarily due to (i) the tax refund of HK$10.0 million from the Taxation
Bureau of Rugao city and (i) the change in Group’s dividend policy for its
PRC subsidiaries which resulted in the reversal of deferred tax provision
made on the distributable profits of the PRC subsidiaries in prior years
amounted to approximately HK$4.7 million.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

Our profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by 3.3 times to
HK$39.5 million for the Year from HK$9.3 million for the previous year,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.
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BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a three-year bank loan with
a carrying amount of HK$5.4 million (2014: HK$8.6 million), which was
denominated in Renminbi with a fixed interest rate at 6.77% per annum.
This bank loan was secured by the land use right and properties used in
the operation of the Group’s wastewater treatment business.

During the Year, the Group has drawn down a one-year bank loan with
a carrying amount of HK$29.8 million as at 31 December 2015, which
was denominated in RMB with a fixed interest rate at 4.5% per annum.
The loan is unsecured and repayable on demand. To mitigate the foreign
currency risks of the loan arising from the fluctuation of the exchange
rate of Hong Kong dollar against Renminbi, the Group has entered into
a one-year cross currency swap contract at the same time with nominal
amount and payment terms equal to and offsetting the principal and
interest payments of the loan. The net cash flow of the loan and the cross
currency swap contract resembles a HK$ denominated loan of HK$30.3
million with a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
investments in our projects, construction of our wastewater treatment
facilities and purchase of equipment, as well as costs and expenses. As
at 31 December 2015, the net asset value of the Group was HK$515.1
million (2014: HK$364.8 million), increased by 41.2% when compared with
2014,

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity
and total debt is the interest-bearing bank borrowings. The gearing ratio
was kept stable, being 0.1 as at 31 December 2014, and 0.1 as at 31
December 2015.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time. Surplus cash will be invested appropriately so that the
Group’s cash need in support of the Group’s strategy direction from time
to time can be met.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our major capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures to
upgrade and improve the Group’s wastewater treatment facilities. For
the Year, our capital expenditures amounted to approximately HK$60.6
million. These capital expenditures were funded by funds generated from
our operating activities and the proceeds from the Share Offer and the
Placing.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

Individual companies in Mainland China within the Group have limited
foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are denominated and
settled in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2015, approximately 30.1% of
our cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi, 2.5% were
denominated in United States dollars and 67.4% were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not have significant foreign currency
exposures from its operations. However, our consolidated financial
statements is presented in Hong Kong dollars. Any appreciation or
depreciation of Hong Kong dollar against Renminbi will affect our financial
position and be reflected in the exchange fluctuation reserve. The Group
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The management
monitors the Group’s foreign exchange fluctuation exposure closely. In light
of the increased volatility of the exchange rate of Hong Kong dollar against
Renminbi recently, the Group has managed to reduce the exposures in
Renminbi by converting a majority of the cash and bank balances into
United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group has invested its surplus cash in securities, which comprise
mainly bonds and investment funds (“the Portfolio”) for stable interest
income. The management adopted a prudent investment strategy
that focuses on the diversification of markets and sectors to minimise
concentration risks. The management also monitors the investment
performance of the Portfolio on a regular basis. During the Year, the
Portfolio generated an interest income of HK$2.1 million (2014: Nil) and
a gain on disposal of investments of HK$0.2 million (2014: Nil). As at 31
December 2015, a loss of HK$0.8 million (2014: Nil) due to the changes
in fair value of the investments was recorded and included in other
comprehensive income of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The total value of investments was amounted to HK$127.9 million
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). As the Portfolio comprised primarily
of investment grade bonds, the management considers the change in fair
value of the investments to be temporary.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 78 (2014: 75) employees
(including the Directors). Employee costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$9.8 million for the Year (2014: HK$8.3 million). Our
remuneration policy for the Directors and our senior management
members is based on their experience, level of responsibility, length of
service and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other
merit payments are linked to the profit performance of the Group and the
individual performance of the Directors and senior management members.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 5 September 2014
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible directors
and employees of the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Group had no material event subsequent to the end of the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

A final dividend of HK1 cent per Share has been recommended by
the Board for the Year (2014: Nil) to be paid to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 31 May 2016. Subject to the
passing of the relevant resolution at an annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) to be held, the final dividend is expected to be paid
to the Shareholder on or around Monday, 20 June 2016, in cash in Hong
Kong dollars.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 68, was appointed as a director of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as
the chairman and an executive director of the Company on 5 September
2014. He has been the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) since 5 September 2014.
Mr. Chau is mainly responsible for business development and strategic
formulation of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2002 as a
director of Everbest Water Treatment Development Company Limited
(“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and literature
from Xiamen University (JEF9X22) in China in August 1968. He is currently
a member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (FF Bl A & A # B € %), a deputy
officer of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (2 Bl B it @ FE HIZ& B €) and the
vice chairman of the 9th board of directors of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Associations (& /& & & 4L B B &). Mr. Chau was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong government in 2010.

Mr. Chau has held directorship in various companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chau was
an executive director of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 651) from September 2007 and then re-designated as a non-
executive director and appointed as an honorary Chairman in June 2015.
Mr. Chau has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Redco Properties Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Sumpo
Food Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089), Come Sure Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 794) and Good Fellow Resources Holdings Limited
(stock code: 109) since January 2014, December 2010, February 2009
and July 2007, respectively. Mr. Chau had also been an executive director
of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 578) from March 2000
to November 2006, an independent non-executive director of Hao Wen
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019) from June 2003 to August 2009, and
an independent non-executive director of Buildmore International Limited
(stock code: 108) from December 2008 to September 2010. Mr. Chau
is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, a non-executive director of the
Company.
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Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 33, was appointed as a director of the Company on
25 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chief executive officer and
an executive director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
a member of the nomination committee of the Board since 5 September
2014. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the Group,
including project construction and operation, business development,
marketing and strategic formulation. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March
2007 as a director of Everbest. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a
database administrator at Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los Angeles,
the United States, from February 2005 to December 2006.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the lowa State
University of Science and Technology in the United States in December
2004. He is a member of the 11th Fujian Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (7 Bl A B BUA # &
THBRAEZEE), a standing committee member of the 10th board of
directors of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& /8@ &t
&), the chief supervisor of the 9th Hong Kong Minxi Association Ltd.
(BAEWEEEE), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision Committee of
Lung Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong Limited (& /B #E & R4 &),
and the vice-president of the Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese
Youth Committee (& /BZEGZE AL E). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr.
Chan Pak Lam Brian, a non-executive director of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 27, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been a member
of the remuneration committee of the Board since 5 September 2014.
Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Communication from Purdue
University in the United States in May 2011. Since March 2013, Mr. Chan
has been working as marketing and sales director at PT. Indoferro. He
has been involved in the business of the Group since September 2012
when he was appointed as a director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd.
(“Exuberant”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was intended
by the then shareholders of Everbest to be used as the holding company
for the purpose of the listing the Group. While serving as a director of
Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring business opportunities in
the environmental-related industry within the larger Asia region and was
also responsible for the setting up and maintenance of the Company’s
information technology system. Mr. Chan continued to be involved in the
Group’s business after he was appointed as a Director on 18 March 2014.
Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Mr. Chan Kwan, an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 34, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been a member
of the audit committee of the Board since 5 September 2014.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international trade
department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
from February 2011 to August 2013 and a business adviser at Vodafone
Ltd. in the United Kingdom from November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau is currently a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts from Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom in September 2005. He is also registered
as a technical representative of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association. Mr. Chau is the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, an executive
director of the Company and the chairman of the Board.
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Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 5 September 2014. She has
been the chairman of the audit committee of the Board and a member
of each of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board since 5 September 2014,

Ms. Ng has been a director at Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited, previously
known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited since April 2012, prior to which she
was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y. Ng & Co., an accounting firm, from
January 2008 to April 2013. Ms. Ng has also been a director at Futurelink
Limited since February 2004. She has been a part-time lecturer in the
School of Continuing and Professional Education of City University of Hong
Kong since October 2015, a part-time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media
Limited since August 2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy
Training Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April
2010. She is the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong Kong: SME
Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and “Practical Guide to
Financial Reporting Standards in Hong Kong” published by CCH Hong
Kong Limited since September 2013. She was a director of Learning Is
Fun Association Limited from June 2007 to June 2012. Ms. Ng was a staff
accountant at Ernst & Young from September 2000 to September 2001,
and was promoted to senior accountant in October 2001 until she left that
firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009 and a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 1997. She has been a certified professional
forensic accountant of The Institute of Certified Forensic Accountants
since September 2011, a certified tax adviser and an associate of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since September 2010, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since October 2005 and a
practicing member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2005.
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Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Board since 5
September 2014.

Mr. Ng was a business consultant of China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited, a company principally engaged in
investment, from January 2014 to April 2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking
Corporation Ltd. from July 1969 to December 2012 and was a chief
executive from April 1992 to July 2012. Mr. Ng was an honorary president
of the 37th Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from April 1999 to March 2003
and a member of the 10th Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FFBIA RBUA A € #EEE
Z 8 2). Mr. Ng completed an extension course in banking at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in September 1982. Mr. Ng has also been
an independent non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock
code: 181) since June 2014, and each of Global Tech (Holdings) Limited
(Stock Code: 143) and Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code:2323) since March 2016.

EENGREEEB 2EABE

RIXPRE

RNHEE 64 RZZE—WMFNA
AHEZITAELAR Té’%ﬂlﬁﬂﬁi%
FE-_E—UFNARBE—EAHH
i,ﬁzJ*LA&%%AE’J%V;@E\g
RAEBEEEBEIKE °

REAH-_ZT—NF—AE_T—H1F
WMAREHEEFEEETE(BEE)IE
BERARMESER @ ZAREERN
EREEB - BN EFELtAZEZ
f—:$+—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ AT
B R—Ah-—FmAZE-_T——F+t
BHEFEKIE- %%Eﬁ%ﬁ?%%
BrrEEseREeR RN NLANLEN
AE-ZTE=F=ZRAAEABRIRER
EeRERATEARBGAHE SR

F+EEERELZESZE - REER
—NWNZFNAEEFBE T KRERT
¥RINFRE RAEEBA T —WF XA
RIETEBIZERBR AT (RHRE
181) MBE T —NF= ARETRRAE
BOER) BRAR (RO RS : 143) &
ZEEBER) BR AR (RO R :
2323) ZEEMBIIERITES -

> & &0 o o>

[ N N 2 2N 2 N N N o



O

[ N N N 2N i N i o o
[ N N N N o X i o

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2015 Annual Report

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EEREREEEZBABE

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board since 5 September 2014.

Mr. Sze is currently the principal of Dentons. He obtained a degree of juris
doctor from the Southwestern University in the United States in December
1999. Mr. Sze also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
and a bachelor’s degree in science from the Loyola Marymount University
in the United States in December 1993 and May 1992, respectively.

Mr. Sze is qualified as a lawyer in the United States, Hong Kong as well as
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). In June 2000 he was admitted
to the practice of law in the State of California and in the United States
District Court of the Central District of California, and is currently a member
of the State Bar of California. In September 2001, he was admitted to
practise in the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. In
March 2004, he was admitted as a Solicitor to the High Court of Hong
Kong. In February 2008, he passed the National Judicial Examination
of the PRC and was granted qualification as a legal professional by the
Ministry of Justice in the PRC. In April 2014, he was admitted to the Bar of
the Supreme Court of the United States.

Mr. Sze is a member of the All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese (% 2 Bl 57 B # G 8% & €) (the “ACFROC”), a member of the
legal advisory committee of the ACFROC (*F RfEH AE2EMZ B8 ), an
overseas legal adviser of the legal advisory committee of the ACFROC
in Jiangsu Province (/I & & & Bt /A 2 B 5] &£ B €), an overseas legal
adviser of the ACFROC in Zhejiang Province (#3L% &H#), a member of
the 11th Fujian Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBAHE EH#EEE L B E), alegal adviser of
the Sy Clan Association of HK Limited (& /& i X = # &), a voluntary
legal adviser of the Hong Kong CPPCC of Fukien Province Members
Association (7B & & & BB ZED), a voluntary legal adviser of the
Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (&A@ E( B # <) and a
voluntary legal adviser of the 16th board of Hong Kong Federation of Jin

Jiang Clans (B8 &/ LR =).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Fan Chi Chiu

Mr. Fan Chi Chiu, aged 30, joined our Group in April 2015 and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on 1 June
2015. He is mainly responsible for financial management and reporting,
investor relations, fund raising and capital management of our Group. He
assists the chief executive officer in our strategic planning and business
development, as well as the Group’s compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan was a finance director of Vantasia
Holdings (H.K.) Limited from April 2014 to March 2015. He was an analyst
in Barclays Investment Bank from July 2011 to March 2014 and a senior
associate of Pricewaterhouse Coopers from October 2007 to June 2011.

Mr. Fan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in July 2007. Mr. Fan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Zili

Mr. Wang Zili, aged 53, was appointed as the deputy general manager of
the Haian Hengfa Facility on 18 March 2014. Mr. Wang joined the Group
in February 2005 and is mainly responsible for overseeing operational
matters related to the Haian Hengfa Facility. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang was vice chairman and general manager at Beijing Solar Power
Nutritious Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (It RIptELE TI2%EAR
FR/2A]), a deputy general manager at National Youth Services Centre (/R
& D FEHE RS L) and a researcher at Zhuzhou Electric Locomotive
Research Institute (§3& 35N E % B FERT), and worked at Shenzhen
Recruitment Services Company (#3177 A7 BR#% 2 7). Mr. Wang obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Dalian Railway Institute (A& &
E2B3) (now known as Dalian Jiaotong University (A 2238 K 2)) in July
19883.
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Mr. Zhou Yinbing

Mr. Zhou Yinbing, aged 38, was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Rugao Henga Facility on 18 March 2014 and is mainly responsible
for overseeing operational matters related to the Rugao Hengfa Facility
and the Rugao Honghao Facility of the Group. Mr. Zhou joined the Group
in February 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked at Nantong
Feilong Towngas Fittings Factory (78 & 7R 88 & & & & & & M) from
September 1997 to February 2004, providing technological support in the
production department.

Mr. Zhou studied economics and management at the Party School of the
Jiangsu Provincial Committee of the Communist Party of China (7 )T
BREZER) in July 2010, and obtained an associate degree in business
administration from the Open University of China (FF R & & & 17 K &)
in July 2006 as well as a diploma in applied electrical and mechanical
technology from Jiangsu Province Nantong School of Agriculture (7T #x
BEEEEER) in June 1997. Mr. Zhou is qualified as a wastewater
treatment technological management administrator by the Jiangsu
Province Housing and Urban-Rural Development (iT &k & (£ 5= A 5 45 12
% E2) in December 2011, an engineer by Jiangsu Province Environmental
Protection Department ()T & & IR 3% (R #& &) in January 2008, a work
safety administrator by Rugao Administration of Work Safety (M1&£ T %2
AEEEEIER)IN June 2006.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwok Siu Man

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, aged 57, has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since 18 March 2014. Mr. Kwok is the head of
corporate secretarial in Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited and
a director of Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, our Hong Kong
branch share registrar. He is presently a fellow member of each of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Institute of
Financial Accountants in England, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”), The Association of Hong Kong Accountants, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Institute of Public Accountants
in Australia. He also possesses professional qualifications in arbitration,
tax, securities and investment, financial planning and human resource
management. He was the chief examiner of the “Corporate Secretaryship/
Hong Kong Company Secretarial Practice” module of the international
qualifying examinations of the HKICS and its longest-serving council
member/director. In addition, Mr. Kwok completed the Common
Professional Examination in England and Wales, obtained a post-graduate
diploma in laws and earned a bachelor’s degree of arts and a professional
diploma in company secretaryship and administration.

Mr. Kwok has an aggregate of over 25 years of extensive in-house
corporate secretarial, legal and management experience gained at
company secretary and other senior positions from overseas and Hong
Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent stock and Hang Seng
Mid-Cap 50) listed companies. He was the managing director of a top-
notch financial printer in Hong Kong with international affiliation and an
independent non-executive director of a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was named in the “International WHO’S
WHO of Professionals” In 1999 and has been an adjudicator of the Best
Annual Reports Awards organised by the Hong Kong Management
Association and a member of the Board of Review appointed by the
government of Hong Kong under the Inland Revenue Ordinance. He
is currently the company secretary and a joint company secretary of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange and the vice-chairman
of a charity trust in Hong Kong.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting and enhancing
Shareholder value through good corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognize the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all applicable
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) throughout the Year,
except as disclosed in this report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct governing the securities
transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the
Company on the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for overseeing
and supervising the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and
standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human resources
support are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but are not limited to formulating the
Group’s business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s financial
results and performance and approving its interim and annual results
upon the review and recommendation of the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”); approving the appointment, removal or
re-appointment of the Board members upon the recommendation of
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”);
approving the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”) upon the
recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”), deciding all significant financial (including
major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance, and all other functions
reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”). The Board may from time to time delegate
certain functions to Senior Management if and when considered
appropriate. The Senior Management is mainly responsible for the
execution of the business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the
Board and assigned to it from time to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
Directors so that there is a strong independent element on the Board,
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises the following seven Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors (the “NEDs”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict
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The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman of the Board, is the father of Mr.
Chau Chi Yan Benny, a NED. He is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, a NED. Mr. Chan Kwan
owns 20% of the issued shares of the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the Directors.

The two EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses development, strategic
formulation and are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an independent
judgment to bear on the issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conducts
and scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high
standard of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as
well as providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so as to
protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which complied
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs
must represent at least one-third of the Board members and met the
requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence in
writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied
that all the INEDs have been independent and met the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up
to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and tailored-made
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business and full
awareness of the Director’s responsibilities under the statues and common
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense and they have been requested to provide the Company with
their training records. According to the training records maintained by
the Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr. Chan
Pak Lam Brian, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr.
Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict has attended seminars/
conference/forums and/or read newspapers, journals and updates relating
to the economy, general business, corporate governance and directors’
duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board meets four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
with notice given to the Board of Directors at least 14 days in advance.
For additional Board meetings which require discussion and resolution
of significant issues arising from the operations of the Company, notice
is given in a reasonable time in advance. Before each Board meeting,
a draft agenda is sent to all Directors at least three days or such other
period as agreed in advance in order to allow the Directors to include any
other matters in the agenda that is required for discussion and resolution
in the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed on issues
arising at the Board meetings and to make informed decisions, Board
papers together with all appropriate and relevant information in relation
to the matters of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days or
such other period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a view to ensuring
that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board
meetings minutes. Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing
Rules, any Directors and their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be discussed at the
Board meetings will abstain from voting on resolutions approving such
transactions and are not to be counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting and four Board meetings
were held. The table below sets out the attendance by the Directors of
these meetings:

WAEE  EESHBH—RBEET
AERMREFRRH - FRBIIES
SRR

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEERE
FEREEERRE
General
Name Board Meeting
HE Exg N1
EDs BITES
Chau On Ta Yuen BZEIR 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan PRE 4/4 1/1
NEDs FHTES
Chan Pak Lam Brian BRAF AR 0/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny AEA 4/4 1/1
INEDs BAFHTES
Ng Chung Yan Linda hIEE 4/4 0/1
Ng Man Kung Rt 4/4 0/1
Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict JiE=y-3 4/4 0/1
Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held meetings MEZFEg@I EFSEFRAFE

with all the NEDs (including the INEDs) without the presence of the EDs
during the Year.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. One NED and all the INEDs were not able to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) held on 8 May 2015
(the “2015 AGM”) due to their respective business engagements. Other
Board members who attended the 2015 AGM were already of sufficient
calibre and number for answering questions raised by the Shareholders at
the 2015 AGM.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 5 September 2014 and
discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of
Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated
and assumed by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority so that power is not concentrated in any member of the
Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman, is responsible for business
development and strategic formulation of the Group while Mr. Chan Kwan,
the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for all major affairs of the Group,
including project construction and operation, business development,
marketing and strategic formulation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees named
above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng
Chung Yan Linda, serving as the chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze
Yeuk Lung Benedict and a NED, namely Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny. The
terms of reference was revised and adopted on 11 December 2015 to
include the responsibility arising from the Stock Exchange’s proposal on
risk management and internal control under the CG Code applicable to
accounting periods on or after 1 January 2016.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and considering any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting the
same to the Board, and identifying and making recommendations
on any matters in respect of which it considers that action or
improvement is needed,;

discussing with the external auditor before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and ensuring
proper co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;
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reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior Management
has performed its duties in establishing and maintaining effective
systems, including matters on adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the Senior Management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by such audit to the Senior Management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
the Senior Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;
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establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for employees
of the Company and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter related
to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the Senior Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report in the Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement of laws,
rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, three Audit Committee meetings were held whereat the
Audit Committee (i) reviewed the audited consolidated financial results
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014; (ii) reviewed the
unaudited financial results of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2015; (iii) considered the nature and scope of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the Year and (iv) reviewed the internal
control and risk management system of the Group. The attendance of
individual members was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HESBRE
pEE FEREEERRE
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hER 2+ 3/3
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rk 3/3
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MEERER A 3/3
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny FABALAE 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Man Kung, serving as the
chairman, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict, and
a NED, namely Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and the Senior
Management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing a remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual EDs and the Senior Management and
such packages include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommmendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
NEDs;

° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs and

the Senior Management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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AN =53
TRER/HRE
° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to

the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;
and

o reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for the

Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and recommended to
the Board for consideration the adjustment on the Director’s fee of all the
Directors with effect from 1 January 2015 and the bonus payment to the
EDs. The attendance of individual members was set out in the following
table.
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESBRE
e FERHESBRY
Mr. Ng Man Kung R EE 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hERA T 2/2
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MEERESE 2/2
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian PRABARIE & 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs,
namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk
Lung Benedict, and two EDs, namely Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan
Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen serving as the chairman. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity of perspectives) of the
Board at least annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;
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° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company, as appropriate;
and reviewing the measurable objectives that the Board has set
for implementing such policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors,
in particular, the Chairman and the chief executives.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held whereat
the Nomination Committee (i) assessed the independence of the INEDs;
(i) recommended to the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
all the retiring Directors as Directors at the AGM held on 8 May 2015;
(iii) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and (iv)
reviewed the Board diversity policy. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESERE

HE FERLEEERRH

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BRERTE 11

Mr. Chan Kwan PRE T4 1/1

Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt 11

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hER 2+ 1/1

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MEERER A 1/1
BOARD’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEENLRET AN

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG Code as
set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance functions of the Company. The
Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this corporate governance
report in discharge of its corporate governance functions, ensuring
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the EDs has entered into a service contract with the Company,
pursuant to which they have agreed to act as EDs for an initial term of
three years with effect from 5 September 2014.

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has been appointed for an initial
term of three years commencing on 5 September 2014 pursuant to the
respective appointment letters entered into with the Company.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at
which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,
(a) the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting; and

the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Directors in general meetings. Any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

However, the Company will comply with Code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code that any Director who fills a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
following general meeting of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in note 8
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the Senior Management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Ernst & Young, the Group’s independent auditors,
in respect of the audit and non-auditing services for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$1,600,000 and HK$310,000, respectively. The non-
auditing services rendered relates to the performance of agreed-upon
procedures on interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2015.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the independent auditors, and they both have
agreed to recommend the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the
Company’s independent auditors for the ensuing year at the 2016 annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Group’s results and cash
flows for the Year and are properly prepared on a going concern basis in
accordance with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
which may affect the Group’s business or cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, Ernst & Young has stated in the independent auditors’ report
its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company maintains
sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times. The Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures designed to
provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives including effective
and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management on a yearly basis
systems of the Group. Despite the fact that the Group does not have a
designated internal audit function, the Company has engaged an external
consultant to perform internal control reviews and the result is considered
satisfactory. As such, the Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the
internal control measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services
to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between
the Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with
whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Mr. Fan Chi Chiu, the Chief Financial Officer.

As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been
acting in such capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed
on the Stock Exchange at substantial times since then, he is not required
to have at least 15 hours of relevant continuous professional development
training in the Year under the Listing Rules. However, despite the above
exemption, Mr. Kwok had delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant
seminars during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at the general meeting under the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Articles of Association (the “M&A”).
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to do so
in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM”
set out below.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any
one member of the Company, which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist holds as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company;,
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further
21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND ENQUIRES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Units 1-3, 11th
Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by email to
ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings by
mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 31st Floor 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, which has been appointed by the Company to deal with
Shareholders for share registration and related matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy with
the objective of enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to the Shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), the AGMs and other general meetings
that may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate communications on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
M&A on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The directors of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and the “Directors”, respectively) present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of wastewater treatment
services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group
at that date are set out on pages 62 to 146 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

On 21 August 2015, the Company declared an interim dividend of HK2
cents per ordinary share of the Company, absorbing a total of HK$19.0
million. Such dividend was paid on 31 October 2015.

A final dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share is declared by the Board
for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the potential
future development of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report.

There is no important event affecting the Group that has occurred since
the end of the Year.

The performance analysis using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the Management Discussions and Analysis on pages 8 to 14 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

This section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group.
This is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and uncertainties
further to the principal areas of risk outlined below. The financial risks
are covered in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. A more
comprehensive analysis of the Group’s risk factors is set out on pages
29 to 46 of the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”).
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The increase in actual operating costs of the Group due to the increase
in utilization of the wastewater treatment plants may not be compensated
fully and timely by the adjustment of the water tariff under the build-
operate-transfer (the “BOT”) agreements. The profitability and financial
condition of the Group may therefore be adversely affected.

The customers are a local government authority and a local government
administrative committee in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The repayment
period is usually longer than the Group’s credit period granted to them
mainly due to the complexity of their internal administrative procedures.
In addition, the Group had not been paid on a regular basis by Rugao
Economic and Technological Development Zone Administrative Committee
in respect of the services that the Group provided to them under the
BOT agreement for the wastewater treatment facility operated by Rugao
Honghao Metal Water Treatment Company Limited, an indirect subsidiary
of the Company. The cash flow and liquidity could be negatively affected
by delays in payments by the Group’s customers.

The Group is exposed to environmental risks due to the nature of its
business operations. Water supplies may be exposed to pollution.
The types and amounts of pollutants in the wastewater may increase
unexpectedly. If the wastewater is not treated or the pollutants are not
removed from the wastewater adequately and efficiently, the Group could
be held liable for health and environmental damages. It could materially
affect the Group’s business and reputation.

The wastewater treatment projects are required to meet effluent emission
standards imposed by the relevant environmental protection administration
authorities, which are subject to changes in the future. If more stringent
standards are adopted, the operational costs to meet such higher
standards will increase. In addition, any changes in legislative, regulatory
or industrial requirements may render the Group’s wastewater treatment
solutions obsolete. Upgrades to the existing technologies and facilities to
meet the standards may be necessary, which could incur higher operating
costs, more human resources and other consumptions. These could
adversely affect the Group’s operating performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives to offer a one-stop approach to the provision of
wastewater treatment services to reduce the environmental impact of
wastewater discharges. Adhering to the principle of sustainable cleaner
production, our two wastewater treatment facilities adopted wastewater
reuse and water recycling designs in order to save water. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to promote greening efforts in our wastewater treatment
facilities and further improved our odor control facilities in an effort to
minimize the potential impact on neighboring communities. In addition,
in order to further reduce final discharge of pollutants and in response to
the new environmental protection policies promulgated by the Chinese
government, the Group conducted improvement works at the Rugao
Hengfa Facility in 2015 to save energy and reduce emissions.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The Group and its business are governed and regulated by certain laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group which are
stated on pages 75 to 86 of the Prospectus. During the Year, no violation
of any of the relevant laws and regulations has been identified.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

As a Group of the environmental industry, we are fully aware of the
importance of our operating performance to the general public — one of
the key stakeholders of the Group. We strive to ensure that the quality of
water output from the wastewater treatment plants meets the required
industry standards. In addition, the Group is concerned with the impact of
the operation on other passive stakeholders. For example, the odor of the
wastewater and sludge could affect the habitat and the quality of life of the
residents near our wastewater treatment plants. The Group has addressed
the problem by constructing covers over the containers to minimize the
impact. Protecting the environment and delivering good-quality services to
the society remain the Group’s primary goal.

Other stakeholders include the Group’s employees, vendors and the
relevant local government authority or administrative committee.

The Group is committed to providing its staff with a fair workplace
where individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds are treated equally.
It encourages career advancement of its staff and provides good
opportunities for learning and development. The Group offers competitive
compensation according to the staff's qualifications and experience, level
of responsibility and performance.
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The Group maintains a good relationship with its vendors and
communicates with them proactively to ensure that they are committed
to delivering high-quality and sustainable products and services. It has
internal control procedures in place to assess the quality of the existing
vendors regularly, as well as to ensure sufficient tenderers are sought for in
case of new acquisitions of raw materials, machineries, etc.

The local government authority and administrative committee are the key
customers of the Group. The Group communicates with them regularly
to ensure that it shares the same vision in the industry and its future
development. The Group is also concerned with the opportunities and
challenges faced by each party, and aim to maximize benefits of both
sides in the course of cooperation in existing operations and future
projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the Year and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and for the past four financial years are
set out on pages 147 to 148 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2016 AGM will be held on 20 May 2016, and the AGM notice will be
published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 17 May 2016
to Friday, 20 May 2016 (both dates inclusive), during which no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending the forthcoming
AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 31/F,,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 May 2016.
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Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving the declaration of a
final dividend by the Shareholders at the AGM, the register of members will
be closed from Friday, 27 May 2016 to Tuesday, 31 May 2016 (both dates
inclusive), during which no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was attributable to two customers
who are local government authorities. They jointly accounted for 100%
of the Group’s revenue, with each of them accounting for 91.5% and
8.5% of the Group’s revenue, respectively. The percentage of purchases
attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 43.5% and 63.5%, respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively))
or any Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$13.5 million (2014:
approximately HK$28.3 million).

In addition, under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company in the amount of HK$329.5 million
may be applied for paying distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report:

Executive Directors
CHAU On Ta Yuen (Chairman) N
CHAN Kwan (Chief Executive Officen)™

Non-Executive Directors (the “NEDs”)
CHAN Pak Lam Brian®
CHAU Chi Yan Benny#

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
NG Chung Yan Linda#"N

NG Man Kung~"N

SZE Yeuk Lung Benedict V"N

A = member of audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
R = member of remuneration committee of the Board
N = member of nomination committee of the Board

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chau
On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian and Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda
shall retire at the 2016 AGM and all of them, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms. Ng
Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict, an
annual written confirmation of his / her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. At the date of this report, the Company considers all
of them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 23 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company, pursuant to which each of them has agreed to act as an
Executive Director for an initial fixed term of three years with effect from
5 September 2014. The appointment of an Executive Director may be
terminated by giving three months’ written notice by the Company to the
Executive Director or vice versa.

Pursuant to the appointment letter entered into between each of the NEDs
or INEDs with the Company, each of them has been appointed for a term
of three years commencing on 5 September 2014. The appointment of a
NED or an INED may be terminated by giving three months’ written notice
by the Company to the NED or INED concerned or vice versa.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
2016 AGM has a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company that is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$0.1 million (2014: Nil).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group. No options have been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed since then and there were no outstanding
share options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2015.

The principal terms of which are set out as follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to our Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine to any full-time or part-time employees, potential
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers, customers,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to our Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue immediately upon
completion of the Share Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and
approximately 8.40% as at the date of this report).
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MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to any Eligible
Participant, shall not, when aggregated with

(@)

any Shares issued upon exercise of options or options under
other schemes which have been granted to that Eligible
Participant;

any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options or options under other schemes
granted to that Eligible Participant (except for the INEDs and
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company); and

any cancelled Shares which were the subject of options or
options under other schemes which had been granted to
and accepted by that Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed one per cent.
of the number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any further grant
of options in excess of this one per cent. limit shall be subject to:

)

(i)

the issue of a circular by the Company to the Shareholders
which shall comply with the Listing Rules; and

the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting at
which that Eligible Participant and his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) shall abstain from voting.
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THE PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES MUST BE
EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s offer
document, each of the grantees to whom an option has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her option in the following manner:

() up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing from the
first anniversary of the date (the “Commencement Date”) on
which such option is granted and ending on the expiry of
the period (the “Option Period”) to be notified by the Board
to each grantee within which the option may be exercisable
provided that such period of time shall not exceed a period
of ten years commencing on the Commencement Date;

up to B6% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on the
second anniversary of the Commencement Date and ending
on the expiry of the Option Period; and

up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the Option
so granted to him/her (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on the
third anniversary of the Commencement Date and ending on
the expiry of the Option Period.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD, IF ANY, FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise imposed by the
Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer document. A sum of HK$1.00
is payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer.
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8. THE BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an Eligible
Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its committee) in
its sole discretion, save that such price shall not be less than the
highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for business of dealing in securities;

the average of the official closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days (as defined in the Listing Rules)
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a Share.

(©

9. THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 26 September 2014,

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable a Director to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of the Shares or any shares in other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries
were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)) required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each (the
“Shares”)
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Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Directors/Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held RAD T

B BRTHABHE a1 EEitE RO #E KREDL

Chau On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) Interest in a controlled corporation 225,000,000 23.63%

BELER(ELE]D RErERR

Chan Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) Interest in a controlled corporation 375,000,000@ 39.39%
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Notes: Pt -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or
to be entered in the register referred to the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
following persons or organizations (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an
interest and/or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares,
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:
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Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 375,000,000 39.39%
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Ms. Wong Interest in a controlled corporation 377,000,000 39.60%
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Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation
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Notes:

Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investments Limited (“Hightop”)
is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and, therefore, Ms. Wong is deemed to be
interested in the 375,000,000 Shares and 2,000,000 Shares held by Everbest
Environmental and Hightop respectively pursuant to the SFO. In addition,
Hightop is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung, the husband of Ms.
Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is deemed to be interested in the
2,000,000 Shares held by Hightop and 375,000,000 Shares deemed to be held
by Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.

Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr.
Chau, respectively. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore, deemed to be interested in
the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea controlled by Mr. Chau pursuant
to the SFO.

3 All the above Shares were held in long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any persons or
organizations (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company)
who/which had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or were required to be entered in the register kept by
the Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are required to
participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once made.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained adequate public
float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares being held by the public) during
the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary course
of business by the Group during the Year are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group has not conducted any “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements as related party
transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules) or are fully exempt continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Chan, Mr. Chan (the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director), Ms. Wong, Everbest Environmental (a company owned by Ms.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and 20%, respectively),
Mr. Chau (the Chairman and an Executive Director) and Wealthy Sea (a
company owned 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau and his wife, respectively)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) has executed a deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Group on 5
September 2014, pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders
has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted
with the Company for itself and for the benefits of other members of
the Group) that it/he/she would not, and would procure its/his/her close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to, directly or indirectly,
either on its/his/her own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of
any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate or
be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a
shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or otherwise, and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which competes
or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of operating
wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC by the Group as described
in the Prospectus and any other business from time to time conducted,
carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group

BERRRERERAT
T—RFFR

Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

BROREKE

REARBMBRENERRIBESMR
o ARARANFREER RIARFFR
E(MED25%ME HTRD B AR
B) e

RB A X5

AEERAFEERFEB BT ETH
BAEE T X B BENGR A M WA
31

FREX 5

RAFER  AEEWEETEMEAEE
SFLETRBZBREFERZAT L [
ERX S [FERERS] (EHR L™
RAIE14AE) o SRATEREM 313
BABBARSHZRS WAHA [REE
R [FHEBERS ] (EERLETR
BIZE14AE) » SiiBE E TR RIS 14A.73
ERTE2ERENFERERS -

AP

PRzt RAA(TTHBHFANITE
%) £4 4 - Everbest Environmenta(—
RATRET BMERETERREEDFIES
50% * 30% K 20% K~ &) ~ B E(E
FRATES) MBS (—FREALENR
HETHRIHE 90% K 10% K A7) (4
AR ) & B mASER T —0
FRAAAERAEBE R ER S
RIFE([THEFRE] - Bt - ERERE
ZBEERGERTAHEHEE - MAR
R BEARG RAEEHMKE R FAF
W) FEEREE  HTgheREERER
BBEAL(REEKEAGRKRIN TE2EH
B EEl B NE R BER IR
TAL BRI AR (EPEIE)#T
2 W EESEEEBRERZAT
REBEFBLE NS KEEIERMEER
BHERAIRE B FNEMEE R EF IR
ERHEEERIERBESTFTE (ES
BERTTmeERARE EF 48
ARE - EESHMFODRTHAE

> & &0 o o>

)

[ N N 2 2N 2 N N N o



[ N N N 2N i N i o o
> &0 &0 oo o

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 Annual Report

Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

or in which any member of the Group is engaged or has invested or which
any member of the Group has otherwise publicly announced its intention
to enter into, engage in or invest in (whether as principal or agent and
whether undertaken directly or through any body corporate, partnership,
joint venture, or other contractual or other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling Shareholders
an annual written declaration as to the compliance with the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year. The INEDs have reviewed the
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders with the Deed of Non-
Competition and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed above, during the Year and up to the date of this report,
none of the Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group and have any other conflicts of interest, as required
to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no Shareholder had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the provision of
services to the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending
any proceedings, with their civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. In addition, proper insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’ liability has been
arranged.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information
of Directors since the date of the last interim report of the Company
required to be disclosed in this report are as follows:

Mr. Ng Man Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of each of Global Tech (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 143) and
Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2323) in March
2016.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 78 employees (2014: 75
employees). Employee costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$9.8 million (2014: approximately HK$8.3 million)
for the Year. The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members is based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit
payments are linked to the profit performance of the Group and the
individual performance of the Directors and senior management members.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On 22 April 2015, (i) Wealthy Sea (the “Subscriber”), a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and (ii)
Convoy Investment Services Limited and Yicko Securities Limited
(collectively, the “Placing Agents”) entered into a top-up placing agreement,
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to sell up to 160,000,000
Shares to be placed (the “Top-up Placing Shares”) and the Placing
Agents agreed, as agents of the Subscriber, to place the Top-up Placing
Shares, at the placing price of HK$0.98 each, to not less than six placees
who were (i) independent of and not and would not become connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and (i) not acting
in concert together (the “Placing”). On the same day, the Subscriber and
the Company entered into a top-up subscription agreement, pursuant to
which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for such number
of the Top-up Placing Shares (the “Subscription”). Upon completion of the
Subscription on 5 May 2015, an aggregate of 160,000,000 Shares were
issued and allotted to the Subscriber at HK$0.98 per Share. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 April 2015 and 5
May 2015.
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The aggregate nominal value of the Shares issued as a result of the
Placing and the Subscription was HK$16,000. The closing price of the
Shares was HK$1.200 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
date of the agreements for the Placing and the Subscription. The net price
per Share under the Placing was approximately HK$0.945. The gross and
net proceeds from the Subscription were HK$156.8 million and HK$151.1
million, respectively. The said net proceeds were intended to be used for
(i) the potential acquisition of the Wuping Second Waste Water Treatment
Facility (B2 —)57KkEZI2/R) and other potential investments subject
to the execution of the relevant definitive agreements for such potential
acquisition and investments; and (i) further capital expenditure required for
the upgrade works of the wastewater treatment facility operated by Rugao
Hengfa Water Treatment Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company established in the Jiangsu Province, the PRC,
in addition to the projected capital expenditure disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 12 September 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased 8,000,000 Shares on the
Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of HK$4.9 million
excluding transaction costs. All the repurchased Shares had been
cancelled on 9 October 2015. The nominal value of the total issued capital
of the Company was reduced by HK$800.

Particulars of the repurchases during the Year are as follows:
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Save as disclosed herein and under the heading “ISSUE OF EQUITY
SECURITIES” above, the Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or any
subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and practices
adopted by the Company are set out on pages 24 to 40 of this annual
report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
four members, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda (committee chairlady),
Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict, all being INEDs and
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, a NED. The Audit Committee and the Company’s
management have reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the audited annual results of the Group for the
Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming 2016 AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Ernst
& Young and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming 2016 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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e
EY:

To the shareholders of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 62 to 146, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

HEFRRERERAAZTERR
(RSB SEMKZHERLIR)

EEDERFERE 146 BFTE B FRIB R
TRRERABR(ERA ] RENB AR
RiRE M BRE  EPEER-2—1h
F+_A=Z+—HRAHBRRAERR
HEZHLEFENGEZEBRARE 4
ERREHREGKEABFSCTRER T E
SRR EUAREMRIEE R -

ESHRSHERRNRE

BAREFALEREEBRHDAR
B BB BRE LA REE R
PIB BN R RAE DR 2 ARG
AUBEE  AREHEERABED
AR - UBRA R A B
RETEERKERBERHEROEX
SRR -

ZMETRE

EFRERBEESNEZTERALRS
MHHRERER - BEEWEEY BT
EE=2H mMMEEMRR  BFTE
AR E AR AT EMA LB R HE
BEE-

EERBEESHMASEMNELE
RPEAPETTEZ T ZFERTE
FABTEBREENR YRIEBITER
TE NAEBEAGUVBHRRELL
PREEAFERBRL -



To the shareholders of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEZHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bt2 —F—hF+=-A=1+—HI  F)Z

Notes 2015 2014
BiEE —E-T1F —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&IT
REVENUE EEIMA 5 145,462 85,183
Cost of sales SHER AR (95,035) (37,225)
Gross profit EF 50,427 47,958
Other income and gains E A Kz 5 5,318 6,140
Administrative expenses TTHEFR S (18,269) (30,802)
Finance costs BB A 7 (1,247) (1,160)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AR A 6 36,229 22,136
Income tax credit/(expense) FTiS®isE e, (FAX) 10 3,920 (10,861)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 40,149 11,275
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib2mEKBA
Other comprehensive income to be REEZE R ER DR E R i)
reclassified to profit or loss Hh2EKA -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: b ZE -
— Translation of financial — BEWIELAB T RINEE
statements of entities not BB EELN
using Hong Kong dollars BsHE
(“HK$") as functional currency (16,224) (7,863)
— Reclassification upon — HEER—EE AR
deregistration of a subsidiary REMOLE - (5,779)
Available-for-sale investments: AT ERE
— Changes in fair value — DREEZE 15 (555) —
— Reclassification adjustment — FFABEEHERER
for gains on disposal B OEAE
included in profit or loss 15 (246) —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWAHALE
FOR THE YEAR 23,124 (2,367)
Profit attributable to: A&7 (RS F) -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ=PN 39,506 9,267
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR fE A 26 643 2,008
40,149 11,275
Total comprehensive income UWTEFEEEAALLEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ DN 23,765 (3,695)
Non-controlling interest JEFER R = (641) 1,328
23,124 (2,367)
5 EARNINGS PER SHARE BATEBREESEA
50 ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhERER
56 EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
6666 Basic and diluted EARE#E HK4.37 cents | HK1.42 cents
6060606 4.37 Bl 1.42 741
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO
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As at 31 December 2015 R=F—aF+=-H=1+—H

Notes 2015 2014
B 5T —E—HF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WERFE 13 2,310 2,778
Receivables under service IR TELEE TR
concession arrangements FEWRIE 14 349,807 292,759
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 15 127,921 —
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 480,038 295,537
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 246 308
Receivables under service RS EF T RELHET
concession arrangements )R] 14 40,410 42,240
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA K E A R R IE 16 1,289 647
Income tax recoverable AU B pT 1S FR 693 —
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBESEEY 17 87,763 99,064
Total current assets BREEE 130,401 142,259
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables Z S IR 18 12,186 5,062
Other payables and accruals HuE B R ETER 19 3,543 6,424
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 20 794 —
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETEIRITIER 21 32,864 12,720
Income tax payables FER S HR 627 848
Total current liabilities wiREaE 50,014 25,054
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 80,387 117,205
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBDAES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 560,425 412,742
10)
60
60
606060
606060
60660606
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Notes 2015 2014
B —E-AF —T—JuF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowing T RERITIER 21 2,336 5,621
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 22 36,514 37,017
Provision for major overhauls BARIEHEE 23 6,440 5,275
Total non-current liabilities EmB A BB 45,290 47,913
Net assets EEFE 515,135 364,829
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREEA
of the parent PEfL RS
Issued capital BTN 24 95 80
Reserves EH 25 487,447 336,515
487,542 336,595
Non-controlling interest FEIE R 26 27,593 28,234
Total equity s 515,135 364,829
Chau On Ta Yuen Chan Kwan
Director Director
BEZER RE
o -
660 14 14
66066 O6OLO 66060
66O HOHHLOOLOO
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER

Year ended 31 December 2015 #t2 —F— ¥ +=-A=1—HI F)ZF

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRREEAER
Exchange
fluctuation Non-
Issued Share Other reseve  Reseve  Retained controling Total
capital  premium  reserve X funds profts Totdl  interest equity
BEARE  ROEE  EBE  RBEE  BEE  REET B FEREE  EREE
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tt TEr  THT  TEr  TEr TR TEr TEr  TEn
(note 24) (note 25(@)  (note 25(b))  (note 25(c))
Rzt o4) (Hsos) (Hiosh) (MfE25()
At1 January 2014 R-E-NE-A-H - - - 38,640 11,219 138,487 188,346 26,906 215,252
Profit for the year iyl - - - - - 9,067 9,267 2,008 11275
Other comprehensive income EREMZERA -
for the year:
Fxchange difierences on BEYNET
translation of financial EVEAL
statements of entties notusng ~ BYEBHEBIHRR
HKS as functional currency MEAES - - - 7,183) - - (7,183) (680) (7,863)
Reclassfication of exchange Bt —FMEB LA
fluctuation reserve upon ELREEE
deregistration of asubsiciary ~ E 28 (ff3£5)
fnote’) - - -6 - ~ BT ~ BT
Total comprehensive income ERZERAEE
for the year - - - (12,962) - 9,267 (3,69) 1,328 (2,367)
Issue of shares S - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares pursuant o BEROEHN
ashare swap (note 24(i) Bt (Rfzk 24(i) 60 113720 (113,780) - - - - - -
lssue of shares pursuant o RERHEEN
ashare offer (note 24 Bt &7 (PsE 24(i) 20 109,980 - - - - 110,000 - 110,000
Shares issUe expenses RAENRS - (10,360 - - - - (10360 - (10,360
Capitalisation of RREFENL
shareholders' loans - - 82,304 - - - 82,304 - 82,304
Transfer to reserve funds ERZHES - - - - 2,611 (2611) - - -
Interim special 2014 dividend “E-mERERAIRE
(note 11) (Fsx11) - (30,000 - - - - (30,000) - (30,000)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IF
T-A=+-H 80 183340" (31476 25,678 13830° 145,143 336,59 28234 364,829
0)
606
606
660606
660606
6660606
16) 16) 6OH6OOLLHOO
660606 6606 6O6LHLOLOHOLOLOLO
OOOLOOLOLLOLOOOLLOOOLLLOO O
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FERREER

Year ended 31 December 2015 Bt2 —F—hF+_—A=+—HIF FZ

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLTREARLE
Available-
for-sale
investment
Exchange revaluation
fluctuation reserve Non-
Issued Share Other reserve  Reserve At Treasury  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve EX fnds  HERE  shares profits Total interest equity

BRfTRE  ROEE EtRE  RERR RREe EMEE FERH REE B FERBRE  RRAE
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TERn TiEn TiEn TEn TERn TiEn TiEn T FiEn TiEn

(note 24) (note 25(a) (note 25(h)) (note 25(c)) (note 25(d)) (note 25(e))
(HzE24) (W 25(a)) (Wtos) (WEEosic) (WEE2s(d)) (K 25(e))
M1lanuay 2015  RZE-RF
-A-H 80 183,340 (31,476) 25,678 13,830 - - 145,143 336,595 28,234 364,829
Prof for the year ERE - - - - - - - 39,506 39,506 643 40,149
Other comprehensive ~ FREMZE
income for theyear: A :
Fxchange diferences  AEWI AT
on translation of BEEY
financial statements  KYERRHELT
ofentitesnotusng ~ FEMER
HKS as functional =8
currency - - - (14,940) - - - - (14,940) (1,284 (16,224
Changes infairvalue AT ERE
of avalable-forsale  MYRAES
investments - - - - - (555) - - (555) - (555)
Reclassication STABRAA &
adjustment for HERELE
gansondisposal of  WHMERH
avallable-for-sale HERE
investments
included in
proftor loss - - - - = (246) = = (246) = (246)
Total comprehensive ~ ERZEUAEE
income for the year - - - (14,940) - (801) - 39,506 23,765 (641) 23124
Issue of shares BELERIRE
pursUant o the R EES
atop-upplacngand  FEBEES
top-up subscription {7 (A5 24()
(note 24 (i) 16 156,784 - - - - - - 156,800 - 156,800
Placing expenses RERY - (5,657) - - - - - - (5,857) = (6,657)
Sharerepurchase  BHEE
(note 25(g) (BrzE2508)) - - - - - - (4921) = (4921) = (4921)
Cancellaion of shares ~ FEEEE RN
repurchased (P 25(e))
Inote 25(0) M @9 - - - -4 - - - -
Transfer to reserve funds EEZ &S - - - - 4,485 - - (4,485) - - -
Interim 2015 dvidend ~ ~E—REB 5
(note 11) & (M) - - - - - - - (19040 (19040 - (19040)
M 31 December 2015 R =R
T-F=1+-H 9 329,547 (31,476)* 10,738 18,315 (8o1)* - 161,124* 487,542 27,593 515,135
0 * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$487,447,000  * ZERBERB ARGV BARREZPE
2 2 (2014: HK$336,515,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 4R A [ 5487,447,0008 L ( —F — Y
660606 4 1 336,515,000/ 7T) °
66006
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 {2 —F—HF+ - HA=+—HI F/E

Notes 2015 2014
P —E-fHF —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM KEEHEFNRESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRAS AT 36,229 22,136
Adjustments for: HUATSBEEL AR -
Bank interest income HRITH BA 5 (370) (239)
Interest income from available-for-sale Al EREHFEUA
investments 5 (2,068) —
Depreciation e 6 472 434
Provision for major overhauls BARIEEE 6 1,122 1,000
Finance costs BB KA 7 1,247 1,160
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ HEHEM—HEMEATNWE 5 - (5,779)
Gains on disposal of e HERE R RE
available-for-sale investments 5 (246) —
Fair value loss of a derivative financial ~ PTA & @ T AKN AL EER
instrument — a transaction not — WIFEEEHIIR 5
designated as a hedge 6 794 —
37,180 18,712
Decrease in inventories FaRL 50 33
Increase in receivables under service RIS AT RELHE T
concession arrangements B FE LR IE I AN (72,591) (3,013)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments TERTRRIE R E A FE YRR
and other receivables ($gm) /R (688) 954
Increase in trade payables B 5 PR R IAIE AN 7,600 2,669
(Decrease)/increase in other payables b KIA N A& A
and accruals CRL) /N (2,809) 1,550
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEE/ (ER)NERE
operations (31,258) 20,905
Income tax refunded/(paid), net RE (BB F8 4,202 (16,781)
Net cash flows from/(used in) e EREL, (FR)
operating activities RS MEF5E (27,056) 4,124
CASH FLOWS FROM REEDELNRESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  MELAREEB
plant and equipment 13 (117) (758)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAMHHERE
investments (140,570) —
Proceeds from disposal of HE A ERE RS IE
available-for-sale investments 11,627 -
Bank interest received B ERTTHE 370 239
Interest received from A g SR E TS
available-for-sale investments 1,510 -
Decrease in amounts due from JiE UK AR 5 R IE R
related parties - 533 o
Net cash flows from/(used in) wE RS EL, (FA) 2 2
investing activities GOE AV (127,180) 14 g g 2 2
6OHLOHO O
&) &) 6OH6OOLLHOO
6600 6O 6O6LHOHOLOLLO
BOOOLOLLOHOOLLLLOOLOLDLOHOOLO
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 # 2 =%

—AFT A=t —HIFE

Notes 2015 2014
Pt —E-hEF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEBZDEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FTEIRITRE 30,250 11,168
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITE ,m (12,262) (10,378)
Decrease in amounts due to JE 1T A SE 75 SRIB R
related parties - (15,849)
Interest paid RS (920) (907)
Decrease in an amount due to JEN —RW B A RIA) — & FEIERR
a non-controlling equity holder A AFIRERLD
of a subsidiary - (32,847)
Gross proceeds from a share offer Pefn B PSSR AR 24((i) - 110,000
Gross proceeds from a top-up placing S & & HTALE &
and top-up subscription FEERITRBPISRIEAT 24(v) 156,800 -
Payment of listing expenses in relation 2 A BAZETT AR R R & @A
to issuance of new ordinary shares B MR
of the Company - (10,360)
Payment of expenses directly LEERTRER
attributable to a top-up placing SERITRME
and top-up subscription B EARSR (5,657) -
Share repurchase B 17 [E1H8 25(e) (4,921) -
Dividends paid BT E 11 (19,040) (30,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities B & /A BNEL MR & i EFH 144,250 20,827
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  H.% &I & &g,/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ORd) 8 (9,986) 24,965
Cash and cash equivalents FORERIAEEEY
at beginning of year 99,064 75,625
Effect of foreign exchange HNEE R E BT E - TR
rate changes, net (1,315) (1,526)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESMREZED
AT END OF YEAR 87,763 99,064
6606 0) 0)
6666 6O 66006
OOLOOOOOLOOLOLOLLOHOOO
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31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 39,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Units 1-3,
11th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the construction and operation
of wastewater treatment facilities.

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in connection
with the listing of the shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group on 25 February 2014.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History, Reorganisation
and Corporate Structure” to the prospectus of the Company dated
12 September 2014.

The Reorganisation has been accounted for in accordance with
the principle similar to a reverse acquisition as set out in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations. The issue of shares of the Company
in exchange for the equity interest in Everbest Water Treatment
Development Company Limited (“Everbest Water Treatment
Development”) resulted in the Company becoming the holding
company of Everbest Water Treatment Development.

LFREERH

BRERERERAA( AR
al)A—MERSESFMKT
WEREREBREML QA - KXAF]
R FE A SRR b i & P.O. Box 39,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104,Cayman Islands ° 78 2
AMEEEEMBMRNEBER
BE20SRERTO11IE1-3F o

ARARR—EREERAE - K
NCIECESE 3000 = NGRS SEYIN
BRI RIERE M E

BERAGTRERORESE S
RGAERRB(EBRA] £
MET2EMA(EA]) - AAF
R-ZE—WNFE-_A-+HHKAE
BFAKAEESARMNIZERA
Al BEHFBERARFBHA
—E-MFNLA+T—BNBRERE
BIES - EANMARIRE] —&
[E4#] —E& -

BEHDREEB BV B HRE ER
FIREFE I FE N R AU E
BURRAARR - ARQRIHITH
fn AR ER R K 5 3 R B[R A 7
(ME#EKBER]) WREEAR
IR AE KB EROER AT
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31 December 2015 —F

—AF+ZA=1+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

LAFIREKEBH ()
BB 2 W = #

ARRREEMBEARNFBWT

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration and registered Percentage of
place of business share capital equity attributable
L, BT to the Company
St B & &/ RATELERE AL Principal

Name *% St Direct Indirect activities

=L it B ES BHE kS FTEEH

Everbest Water Treatment Hong Kong HK$82,304,273 — 100% Investment
Development BE 82,304,273 57T holding

BEXEER REER

Haian Hengfa Wastewater The People’s RMB30,000,000 — 70% Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited Republic of AR 30,000,0007T treatment
(B%EESTKERARRA) China KRR
(“Haian Hengfa”)*/A (the “PRC”)/

BREESKEEBRAR Mainland
(B%EE])" China

S EYNE
(el
R A

Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment The PRC/ US$9,880,000 — 100% Wastewater
Company Limited Mainland 9,880,000 T treatment
(InREEKEBERLT) China KB IR
(“Rugao Hengfa")"*/A R,

MREZKERERAR Bl A
(T fEEE])

Rugao Honghao Metal Surface The PRC/ US$4,500,000 - 100% Wastewater
Water Treatment Company Mainland 4,500,000 7T treatment
Limited China HIKEE IR
(R BHEeBREKEEBRAR]) e,

(“Rugao Honghao”)**/A B A

MRS EBREKEEERAR
(TR Zeg])

Notes: BiE -

* This entity is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under the * ZEBRBERBUEEZMAFRIN

laws of the PRC. BEKEDE -

** These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under > ZEERBREBEREDEEFM AN

the laws of the PRC. AEERE -

A The English names of these entities represent management’s best effort

at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any

official English names.



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for available-for-sale investments and a derivative financial
instrument which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and alll
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

BRBRERERATA
T-HFFH

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1
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31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

FRIVEOARBMBRGF - &
RESEAHAKREFANEAE
KREAZEXIBRASEEEF
BEEZANE EZRR - MHF
IR EARBNER K EER
IEBNITE

FZERBBRR T IRBE L SED
RE((EESHELE])BEMDH
P HREEN(EEMBR
SR ) (BEMAT BN B RS
U EASEN(ELES
EA D RBRE) BEARES
JRBIA R BB A BB R B E
e ZEMBERTIRE LK
REPIRE - A HEERE R
TTEERTADNEAAEBIIK-
ZERBHRERUABT(ET]) 2
5 Mk = A BN B BIE
EABEREIN T

A

\:

BEVBRREEAR T REKN
BRAR(SABIAEEDEE=F
—RAF+-_A=+—HILFEH
PEHRE - MBARKIAQA
EESHEEEHNEE (BIEEE
MEER) - WAKEBEBRSEKE
BRHEBRMEZARB RIS
BRHAEER - BAEENITE
TEMG 1B 75 i 7 (BD3R R AR, 7 <
SEESBRIEE HRBEE N6
NERERN) FEFBRR - A
REBEEZERAITHRE -
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A TS ER AR M

31 December 2015 —F—hF+=-HA=1+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

@)

the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(€ the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interest, even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described about subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

2.1

WBEE(F)
mEBE(H)

fisd A5 2 B B B sk A IR R MO R
BHHREESLBURRN A RF
2 AIFHE AR AR IKIRE T =2
BHEAENE  AEESEEM
BHA=ERIEN - B -

(@) EZWIHELAMERE
FAARNGHOLHE

REEMBAENLZEMESR
HVREF) ¢ K

AEENREEREER

ES

P 188 A B K 2 R ) B A R Y
HEHEER WERA-BNE
BREE L E Xy = NGO 42
AEERGEHEE A RERE
AR WHEBREARETBE
HERBIE -

B Rt 2 ERA RS B AKX
BOBRBRAKBBARNES
ANORZER S - BIEHEEE
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31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 WHBRREEZEH
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first AEEERAFRE 2 BHRESE
time for the current year’s financial statements. IRERAN T B A ET 2R ©
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions BB EAF19F 2IERTRE
1EFIE & - IES B
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle BB EHER —FE—FFEZ
ZE AR FENE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle BB EHE R —FE——FF
ZE——F R FEHNE
The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below: BB 2B RFEFMN T :
(@  Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from @ BEFEAFEI9% 2
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The BITEANEEXE=F
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions MR ERMETEIMHERK - %
that are independent of the number of years of employee FEET LI IELAE B AR
service, for example, employee contributions that are BEEMERKOEFTE
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the B flingHeEER D
amount of the contributions is independent of the number LLETE B B R o fmf
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such REBWIEAREFEEMm
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period E - A ERBEAERRMEE
in which the related service is rendered. The amendments %8 AR 75 HA ) 6 5% 55 fH SRR
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does not RIERFE AR D - ZF
have defined benefit plans. BRTHAREE N |AEMF

2 FRRSAREEILER
FERMEE

(o)  The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle b)) RZE—HF—HEMD
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number BB BFIHEER —F—
of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for FEFE - F——FHH
the current year are as follows: FREHEEINZIBAB A

BmEE ZEFT - RA
FEEMZIERTFHBWT

. HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an . BB EmEER
entity must disclose the judgements made by FORALE 7IE - B
management in applying the aggregation criteria in BEBRERES
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating B g EAERIZE 8 9%
segments that have been aggregated and the W2 kR E IR ER Y
economic characteristics used to assess whether the AR BEEEEED
segments are similar. The amendments also clarify 2 FE - B E P AR
that a recondiliation of segment assets to total assets EREDE IR
is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is LD ERERE
reported to the chief operating decision maker. The UL BT A 2 48 8 5
amendments have had no impact on the Group. e ZFEBINE

BEOREENASR
EZHEEEZY

RRETIREE
RBANZBERTTA
BE-ZEETY
AREEWELE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(b)

(Cont’d)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

The amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not apply the revaluation model
for the measurement of these assets.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(©

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for
the current year are as follows:

° HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
applied prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any joint
arrangement during the year.

o HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also
to other contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual
period in which HKFRS 13 was initially applied. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not apply the portfolio exception in
HKFRS 13.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
(c) (Cont’d)

° HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in
HKAS 40 which differentiates between investment
property and owner-occupied property, is used
to determine if the transaction is a purchase of an
asset or a business combination. The amendment is
applied prospectively for acquisitions of investment
properties. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Group did not have any acquisition
of investment properties during the year.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year.
The main impact to the financial statements is on the presentation
and disclosure of certain information in the financial statements.

2.2
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23 ERMERKERZEFEM
BiREER

AEBUYARRZEHMBRETE
P52 BAE R R EBZFR]

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 9

BBV R EERNFE IR

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

ARV BEREERFE 105 K&
BB AERAZE 285
(Z2——F) 21857

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

BBV EERFE 105 -
BB EERFE 125
RBEBGEHLERZE 2855
(ZZ——F) 21857

Amendments to HKFRS 11

BRWHREENF 115721

FAERI BB BMELER o

Financial Instruments?

THTA?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

REEZHABENAAEENFRIZFEELEXTE"

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception’

REER  EHGEHRE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’

WK A Z B m s EF B IE

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

BB EERIFE 1455 EEFRRA?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
BB EAERE 155 EFAEAWRA?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

ERGFHERE 1R 2(EE] FEE

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
BEAGHERNE 165 KR

BB ERTERIE 385 Z(ER]

Amendments to HKAS 16
gnd HKAS 41
BB LEAFE 165

BB EFHERIE 41 R 2 ER]

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)
BERGFHERE 27 57

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

EBRERZITE RS Z

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

RE  HEIEY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

AV p) o E P v

(ZF——F) 2{55T
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

2012-2014 Cycle
—EF— R —FUF

SIRB B BRE R ZERT

R F R
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 ! RZT—RF—-—A—Hz &M
IR EY R B AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 RZZE—-N\F—A—Hzz&R
IR EY R B AR

applicable to the Group A— Bz &RsaFEN©%HR 6

= ETNERRAER 60

4 No mandatory effective date is determined but is available for early 4 m AR E SR B EER - MR R 56 2 g
adoption B 5666
6OHLOHO O

&) &) 6OH6OOLLHOO

6600 OO HOHOHOLOLLOLHOO

BOOOLOLLOHOOLLLLOOLOLDLOHOOLO

Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

8 HERRBE B BREERN
BREW  BAR T —RF—
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project
to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
September 2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS
15 regarding a one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements.
The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of comprehensive
income and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(iif) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item,
and classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of
financial position and the statement of comprehensive income. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption on
1 January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based
method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instrument at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Cont’d)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
0] has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;
O O
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEBFRERE(#)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d) RS (#8)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Cont’d) ETANBERT - BE—FH 5%
REREBEG@EE - (&)
or 5%
(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b)) EBEHESAELATETY
applies: (E=CIECSEE
() the entity and the Group are members of the same 0] ZERBEAEEEB
group; Al —&EHKE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —HERARS—E
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of BEHEEQRHAE
the other entity); */JE% (ZBS—&
BHEAA WE
NS EACIES T /N
AIAIFET)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy ZEBRAEERH
same third party; BR—FZF0NE
B
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the ivv —HEBARE=H"
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EENEEDE
mME—EBRZSE
SHERBOBER
al
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v ZEBARBEBRERE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity FetEl - ZEHEle
related to the Group; XmARBAERED
HAEEEHENE
BErEES
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V) ZEER@IBEMM
identified in (a); A T3l 3 R
il
0)
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606
660606
660606
6660606
16) 16) 6OH6OOLLHOO
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXERFEEE(E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d) BB (#8)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Cont’d) ETHNERT  BE— T HHE
REAREE B - (&)

(vi)  a person identified in (a)() has significant influence (vii) R (@) BT A T E
over the entity or is a member of the key ZERBBEEAXE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of SEBZER(NZE
the entity); and BOEAR)XEE

BEKE &

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERBXERZE
part, provides key management personnel services to Mo z2EME
the Group or to the parent of the Group. Epk B QA mA

SESAEEZ
NEIREEFEETRE
B8 R -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND VX BERRIGARE
DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated Y BB RERBIEKAR AR
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of WERERBEFEIKR - ©
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and ¥ BELAZBEEEOXNABRE
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working HBEBELAGFEERENREMAS
condition and location for its intended use. Y 1B VEAR 5 K2 b B T 22 AR A (E 1)
BEEEEKA -
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment ME-- BELREEBERAEZE
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, EREE T H (Fl WA E &R
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is B) —BREELPHEEEA
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, k- MEERTEBRARE - &
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying ARENATEREERTER
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts §$1H’E7%**Tﬁ Wz W5
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at RENEEFHHATHER
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with $’§ EewRzEiloRENE
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. 1 FAF EA R E 51 & B R AR FERT IR
E -
0)
606
606
6600
66006
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Equipment 10%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

A financial asset is recognised to the extent that (a) the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services rendered; and (b) the grantor has little, if any, discretion
to avoid payment, usually because the agreement is enforceable
by law. The Group has an unconditional right to receive cash if the
grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified
or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between
amounts received from users of the public service and specified
or determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent
on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified
quality of efficiency requirements. The financial asset is classified
as receivables under service concession arrangements and is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for loans and
receivables under “Investments and other financial assets” below.

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public service, which is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public
uses the service. The intangible asset (operating concession) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Operating
concessions” below.

If the Group is paid partly by a financial asset and partly by
an intangible asset, in which case each component of the
consideration is accounted for separately and the consideration
received or receivable for both components shall be recognised
initially at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in
respect of work carried out until that date.

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade services
are accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
“Construction contracts” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below. Costs
for operating services are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the
service concession arrangement. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the wastewater treatment facilities, except for
any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with the policy set out for “Provisions” below.

OPERATING CONCESSIONS

Operating concessions represent the rights to operate wastewater
treatment facilities are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Operating concessions
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of operating concessions acquired in a business combination
is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Amortisation is
provided on the straight-line basis over the respective periods of
the operating concessions granted and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that operating concessions may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an operating concession with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period.

An operating concession is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or
loss in the period the operating concession is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant operating concession.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Revenue from the construction of wastewater treatment facilities
under the terms of Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) contracts (service
concession agreements) is estimated on a cost-plus basis in which
the construction margin is determined with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margins of market comparables at the time of
construction and is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method, measured by reference to the estimated proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant
contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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POLICIES (Cont’d)
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed item of financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit
or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase in
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and loans and
borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
a derivative financial instrument and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The subsequent measurement of the financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

TREASURY SHARES

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company and the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. When inventories are
consumed, the carrying value of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs” in
profit or loss.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBFREBE(HE)

POLICIES (Cont’d)
INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBFREBE(HE)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE RECOGNITION SR AESD
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic EERAR BN IR AT 8RN
=

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from construction services, on the percentage-of-completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” above;

(b) from the rendering of wastewater treatment operation
services, when the services are rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
are made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once made.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries in Mainland China
are currencies other than the HK$. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into HK$ at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a operation with functional currency other than HK$,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of certain subsidiaries in Mainland China are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are set out below:

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into BOT arrangements in wastewater
treatment. The Group concluded that the BOT arrangements are
service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service
Concession Arrangements, because the local government controls
and regulates the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In addition, upon
expiry of concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to be
transferred to the local government at nil consideration.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE OF CONTRACT
REVENUE IN RESPECT OF THE CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES RENDERED

Revenue from the construction of wastewater treatment facilities
under the terms of a BOT contract is estimated on a cost-plus
basis in which the construction margin is determined with reference
to a prevailing market rate of gross margins of market comparables
at the time of construction, and is recognised using the percentage-
of-completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant
contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

DETERMINATION OF IMPUTED INTEREST INCOME
ON RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts over the service concession period
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with reference
to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable infrastructure
companies in Mainland China.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the
service concession arrangement. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore infrastructure, except for any upgrade element,
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of each reporting period. The
estimation of the expenditure requires the Group to estimate the
expected future cash outlays on major overhauls of the wastewater
treatment facilities over the service concession periods and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the provision for
major overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015 was HK$6,440,000
(2014: HK$5,275,000), further details of which are set out in note
23 to the financial statements.

BERRRERERAT
— T RFFR

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R R AT

31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

3. EXEFERR & ()

EE RS ERIE TR ER R
HEEFBBA

AR 75 AT AR 22 BF T B0 R WK IR T
BEERERMNRRIZAFELE
HREENSMA - WIRRYHA
HE R I AT B B B IR N R A% R 75 45
A ERTARRIBE W AR -

EREBRARESETE LY
b B R A B (4
HERTE -

75 7K BE HE R e 2 4 O W e Bt AR 75
KEMHEXBIE BB

AEENEHNETAEQREEL
BHRSKEERE  BREAE
TE B9 AT 42 (AR 75 7K F I (b) PR AR 75
BT HERE BB %E
BETFETAZH  BHEER
FBEMEE - ZEREFIESEER
BENANET (AR BN
DIRBEBE B ERFITHRAE
# - EABERAAEET AR
REFE - RS HRERKRET
BEAETE X HNREGRE
EITHEREGE - AETAXEAR
EEAG T RGNS KE
B ERKRENTETRKIEEH
Y WERBEERREUGEZ
EHRERENRBE - RZ-FT—Hh
FH+-—A=1+—BHWRAUBI
MERATIEBBHNERNRISEE
®BRE {8 46,440,000 T (=&
— PN 52750008 7T) B
E— S EEHN SR ERMEE2S -

(9

cococcccoc e
cococcoccocce



(09

cococcoccoc oo
cococcccoc e
cococococCe
cococococ e

cC oo

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS R R AT

31 December 2015 —F—hF+=-HA=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE
CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The policy for provision for impairment of receivables under service
concession arrangements is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s estimation.
A considerable amount of estimation is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. The aggregate carrying amount of
receivables under service concession arrangements carried as
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015 was HK$390,217,000 (2014:
HK$334,999,000). Further details are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of its transactions in
accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provision
accordingly. However, judgement is required in determining the
Group’s provision for income taxes as there are many transactions
and calculations of which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination is
made. The carrying amounts of current tax payables and deferred
tax liabilities are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position and note 22 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities have been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on certain portion of the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China since it is probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
Where the final distribution portion of earnings is larger than the
amount that initially recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax in the periods in which the distribution is made. Further
details of the temporary difference associated with investment in
subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss. During the year, no impairment losses
have been recognised for available-for-sale assets (2014: Nil). The
carrying amount of available-for-sale assets as at 31 December
2015 was HK$127,921,000 (2014: Nil).

FAIR VALUE OF UNLISTED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS AND A DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT

The Group’s unlisted available-for-sale investments are traded
through over-the-counter market and the Group measured them
based on the quoted prices extracted from electronic media such
as Bloomberg. These extracted quoted prices may not reveal to
a wide range of market participants such that the fair value of the
unlisted available-for-sale investments cannot be reliably measured.

The Group’s derivative financial instrument is measured using
valuation techniques that incorporate various observable inputs.
Judgement is required in determining the observable inputs used
and will impact the fair value measurement of the derivative financial
instrument.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the construction and operation of
wastewater treatment facilities. Since this is the only reportable
operating segment of the Group, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers located in
Mainland China and all of the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
receivables under service concession arrangements and available-
for-sale investments) are located in Mainland China.

SEEH

REEBNME  AKEES—
fER 2w a0 - BIIFKEE
RIBRRIGEE - AR TIAR
SEME—A 2WEEE - BIA
B2 —SEED DM -

WEEH

AEERBNERBABKRET
BRtmErs  BAKEMRAN
FRBEE (T RERBRETEL
BET R RUGRIR R A EIRE)

BRI B A o
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS BREEERNEHE
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10% or FREAREE10% A &2 UL
more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below: ARBEIERZFPHNEERAE
FIRT
2015 2014
= Ak
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Customer A BEFPA N/ATER* 27,489
Customer B =FB 133,167 57,694

The corresponding revenue of this customer is not disclosed as it
individually did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s total gross
revenue for the relevant year.

* ZEFPHENEZERART T

% REARZEPREBFES
AREE SRR ABENERURE
#10% °
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ERIA -~ Al A Bl

BERWALE - () RGETRERZH
TRERAAONAHNEXRARNE
B QKRB R AF L HE
TEES KB R Z FE WA
(HBRBEHRLBAMMNE) © &
(3) AR 7% 15 AT 2 BE T FE WK IR Y
HEER B -

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents: (1) an appropriate proportion of contract
revenue of construction contracts under service concession
arrangements; (2) revenue from the operation of wastewater
treatment facilities under service concession arrangements, net
of value-added tax and government surcharges; and (3) the
imputed interest income on receivables under service concession
arrangements.

BERWA - WA RS 5

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

franT
2015 2014
=T-5HF —T0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Revenue EERA
Construction services ERARTE 79,752 16,680
Wastewater treatment facility V57K BE PR RS b e B AR A
operation services 48,952 54,011
Imputed interest income on receivables  ARFGHEFRFIEZ HE T
under service concession arrangements U IE H#EE R B UL A 16,758 14,492
145,462 85,183
2015 2014
—F-1F — L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Other income and gains Hug A & Uz
Bank interest income RITFBEHA 370 239
Interest income from available-for-sale ] i H &R E HF B UA
investments 2,068 —
Foreign exchange gains, net HNEE U 2 FRE - 77
Government grants* BT B 1,703 45
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ BEE s — R B A B AU - 5,779
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale &Rt HERE RS
investments 246 -
Refund of value-added tax BETR 483 —
Realised gain on a cross currency RXEBEBRELN
swap contract KB IR E 146 —
Others Hh 302 —
5,318 6,140
# Government grants have been received from local governments # MERIRRIEGIIHFE S
in Jiangsu Province for the purpose of carrying out environmental BITE MR - RZZT—FE+= 6
protection works. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies AR=t+—BR=_Z—HF+-A 2 2
relating to these grants as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December =T -HMEEEZSHMNR s 660
2015. TR RIS SRR - 66606
6660606
16) 16) 6OH6OOLLHOO
660606 6606 6O6LHLOLOHOLOLOLO
OOOLOOLOLLOLOOOLLOOOLLLOO O
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FRIATRF

AEBHBRBDE M HEMER,
FIA)VATRIFERGH

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes 2015 2014
BEE —E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Cost of construction services R A 60,647 14,684
Cost of wastewater treatment facilities 32455 /K EE F2 2% 7
operation services rendered B RIEHI AR 34,388 22,541
Depreciation e 13 472 434
Minimum lease payments under RIBLEHEE
operating leases M&EHASR 276 115
Auditors’ remuneration 2GR 1,600 1,384
Listing expenses in relation to BHARABEEITRG
listing of existing issued shares EWH EmR - 20,127
Employee benefit expense EERANAX (B
(including directors’ remuneration BEMe (FI5E8)) :
(note 8)):
Salaries, wages and benefits e IAREVEF
in kind 9,168 7,724
Pension scheme contributions* RIKBET IR 661 598
9,829 8,322
Fair value loss of a derivative financial ~ $T4 & & T AHY
instrument — a transaction RNaEEE — I
not designated as a hedge** FBIEE IR 5 20 794 —
Foreign exchange differences, net & X ZRRF R 1,077 (77)
Provision for major overhauls BBARIEREE 23 1,122 1,000
* At 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited contributions * RZE—RF+=—A=+—8"

NEFBWBAEF O ERKE
ERA S BMERM S R UL EE TR
T PUF ) o

available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future
years (2014: Nil).

o - REFNTESRMIAN AR EE
Bt AR 2HEBARAMN (1T

BFX] -

The fair value loss of a derivative financial instrument for the year is
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MREF
Note 2015 2014
PiEE —E-hF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHATT
Interest on bank loans IRITEREFLE 920 907
Increase in discounted amounts of AR R mEE
provision for major overhauls FEWN RS
arising from the passage of time HIRLIR S BEIE N 23 327 253
1,247 1,160
DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFEREETTRARTHEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERNTFTANTHRIE LETR
A - H & A A& 5 % 383(1)@a)
(b) * (o) &Mk r (FEEESF
AR EOIFE 2 ZHEMT ¢

Group
KER
2015 2014
=F-5HF —T0mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FHEIT
Fees fidka 1,960 218
Other emoluments: E A EE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FERLREWFZE
in kind 154 158
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL - 299
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIER - —
154 380
2,114 598
10)
60
60
606060
606060
60660606
16 16 606006066060
60600 6006 HOOHHOOLLHOLO
OOODHOLOHOOLLDLOOOLOLOLLLOHOO
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEEREREITHARTH
REMUNERATION (Cont’d) (#)
(a) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (a) WIUEBRTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FAXNBEILIERITES
the year were as follows: ZERNT
2015 2014
—E-afF —ZT-mEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hEB &+ 120 38
Mr. Ng Man Kung R kAE 120 38
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MEERER A 100 33
340 109
The independent non-executive directors of the Company RATRIBIIENITES
were appointed on 5 September 2014. RZE—WMFENRRARE
ZiE o
There were no other emoluments payable to the F AN NI IEBTT
independent non-executive directors during the year (2014: EFHEMBM( T —HO
Nil). F:m) o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTBRARHH
REMUNERATION (Cont’d) (#8)
(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE (b) BITESERFENTES
DIRECTORS
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Discretionary contributions Total
Fees ¥& 28 bonuses R{k& remuneration
e REYURR BBTEAL ST oAt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET FAT FAT
2015 —E-IF
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen ALERLE 1,320 74 - - 1,394
Mr. Chan Kwan BREXLE
(Chief Executive Officer) (FTH4EH) 100 80 - - 180
1,420 154 - - 1,574
Non-executive directors: FEMTES -
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian RIS AE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny ABALE 100 - - - 100
200 - - - 200
1,620 154 - - 1,774
2014 —E-mE
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BAZEREE 38 76 56 - 170
Mr. Chan Kwan REXE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR %) 26 82 53 - 161
64 158 109 — 331
Non-executive directors: FEMITES ¢
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRAaMEE 26 - 53 - 79
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BEBALE 26 - 53 - 79
52 - 106 — 158 5
66
_ 66
116 158 215 489 5OB D
6600
6HOO O
18} 18 HOLHOLOLO O
6600 6OHO 6OHLLOOLOHOO
BOOOLOLOLHOLOLOLOLHLHOLOO
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEEREREITHARTH

REMUNERATION (Cont’d) (#)

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE b) BRITEERFHRITES
DIRECTORS (Cont’d) (#%)
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan Kwan were appointed B E R %A RRE LA
as executive directors of the Company on 18 March 2014 SRR ZE—OF=H
and 25 February 2014, respectively. Mr. Chan Pak Lam +TNANBRERZZE—MNE=A
Brian and Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny were appointed as non- TThHBEZERERAF
executive directors of the Company on 18 March 2014. Mr. ZHITEE c RAMEE
Chan Kwan was appointed as the chief executive officer of FEBALEER_Z—H
the Company on 18 March 2014. FZA+N\BEZETAXR

RAIZIFPTER - RE
EER-_ZT-—NF=A
TNBEZERARAZ
TR

FALEERMEEHEL

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or . o
9 RS REEMHHZSE -

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES o hEREFNER

FARERSHMIESBE— %
(C2-mF —2)EF HF
B2 BB b RS - G
BRME(=F—ME : mE)
EF2 BEHHIER L FHHEE

The five highest paid employees during the year included one (2014
one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four
(2014: four) non-director, highest paid employees are as follows:

AT -
2015 2014
—E-RF —E=—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 28 R EWH &= 1,863 2,129
Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL 209 370
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE R 926 60
2,168 2,559
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FHBRUATHEFEENES
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: FMEEMHENT ¢
Number of employees
EEHHE
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—mEF
2 . Nil to HK$1,000,000 ;?;%1,000100_05%7_1 o 4 3
50 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 78 7T - 1
6600
66060 4 4
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO



10.

INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2014: Nil).

The provision for the PRC income tax is based on the respective
corporate income tax rates applicable to the subsidiaries located
in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

Haian Hengfa and Rugao Hengfa obtained preferential income tax
treatment whereby their income taxes are charged at the taxable
profit based on 90% of the revenue generated for the year.

In the current year, Rugao Honghao has confirmation from the
relevant tax authority that it is entitled to full exemption on corporate
income tax for 2012 (being the tax year in which Rugao Honghao
began generating profit), 2013 and 2014 and a three-year 50%
reduction in corporate income tax rate from 2015 to 2017. Tax
refunds of HK$9,998,000 in total relating to the tax years of 2012,
2013 and 2014 were received during the year.
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FrisiR
REFSHEREBREZEER
MR AEBEHBARFSE
EREBRZESHMIMAE
e

HRAEERAFEZERNL ERNE
BEAEMAFTEN - SBE
AHREAMNEHRBEE(ZF M
FE)e

TEMMEHRERBERELL S
PR 3t 9 B /88 % =) P 3E FR 3E 4R
MRS TR ARG REED
BEREMEHEMIES °

B RINEERIESHER
BEFB B EAFGHIRE
FEF (ERERAFERNESE
#790% & U ) AR o

RARFEER @ R EEERSER
TRISEPIER E - IR RE ] &
EERERREM _T— —F(AlnE
REERBEERFOMEFE)
TE—ZFRTE-NENLE
FIEBURERE-_T—HFE
TR FZF50%M D EFT
B - AFERIEBR-_ZT—=
F B —=ZFR T —NHFMH
FEF E RR T 519,998,000/ 7T ©

2015 2014

—B-AF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHAT

Current — Mainland China BNER — R El A

Charge for the year FAMX 5,100 8,220
Overprovision in prior years BT F SRR (212) (216)
Tax refunds R (9,998) —
Deferred (note 22) EE (MIEE22) 1,190 2,857
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FARBEAL (K%)BEH (3,920) 10,861
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10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the Company'’s
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the Group’s
effective tax rate is as follows:

FRiGIR (#)

12 7K X B Y 8~ B RE I AR L PR
BUARE R M A E R R ET E AR
Al M) 38 A Y B TR B S BRIR AR £
EERB R EOTIERN (K
%) HEERIT -

2015 2014
= —TmF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Profit before tax BR A% A1 AR A1) 36,229 22,136
Tax at the statutory tax rates BAERETENTIA 9,548 7,327
Adjustments in respect of current tax of A B8:E1E A B EATR TH R F9 B
previous periods (212) (216)
Tax refunds BB (9,998) —
Effect of withholding tax on the TEMRE RN EE
distributable profits of the Group’s I BT 8 2 B AT o B e A
subsidiaries in Mainland China o) (4,590) 1,391
Income not subject to tax A E AL N (1,437) (2,650)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R X 2,769 5,009
Tax charge/(credit) for the year FABESH(ER) (3,920) 10,861

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 26.4% (2014: 33.1%). The change in the
average applicable tax rate is caused by a change in the financial
results of companies within the Group in the respective jurisdictions.

HE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—H
WEE NMEFHEBRAMRER
26.4% (ZZF—H4F : 33.1%) o F
HEABE 22 IRAEER

BRVERR AR ZMBEER
I E
11. DIVIDENDS R
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FHET
Special interim — Nil (2014: HK5 cents) R BlIFP 8 — SR @R ZTE
per ordinary share (ZZE—WF : 578(L) - 30,000
Interim — HK2 cents (2014: Nil) hH — BRREEAR2 B
per ordinary share (ZZE—mF - &) 19,040 —
Proposed final — HK1 cent (2014: Nil) ~ BEKARH — SE @K 18
per ordinary share (ZZE—mF - |\) 9,520 —
28,560 30,000




11.

12.

DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

On 5 September 2014, the Company declared a special dividend
of HK$30,000,000 to the then shareholders of the Company. Such
special dividend was paid on 11 September 2014.

On 21 August 2015, the Company declared an interim dividend of
HK2 cents per ordinary share of the Company, absorbing a total of
HK$19,040,000. Such dividend was paid on 31 October 2015.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
HK$39,506,000 (2014: HK$9,267,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 903,061,000 (2014: 653,151,000, as
if the Reorganisation had been effective since 1 January 2014) in
issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share amount for the year ended
31 December 2014 includes the 1,000 ordinary shares of
the Company issued upon incorporation (note 24(i)) and the
599,999,000 new ordinary shares issued in the Share Swap (as
defined in note 24(ii)), as if all these shares had been in issue
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, and the weighted
average of 53,151,000 new ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
Share Offer (as defined in note 24(iii)).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary share in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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BB (#)

RZZE-—NMFALRABE  ARQFA
AR AR E R E R BIALR
30,000,0007% 7T ° A 845 5l I B
RZZE—FEAA+—HXT -

RZE—RAFNAZ=Z+—H K
NAERFP R EFRARTE
B2 L - 42 %8 A19,040,000
BT BERENR_T—RHET
BA=+—BXff-

RNEFZ KRR B ALARR T
RN EEBCREFTAS LitE
% RMEE -

BATREBERKESA AR
HEiREF

Hz-_T—hAF+=-A=+—H
HFENSRERNRF SEIIIR
B AR LTERRERSE ARG
N 4 JE % 139,506,000 T ( —
T — [0 £ : 9,267,000 7T ) &
AFEEDEHTEBRMETFH
#903,061,000% ( =& — Q4 :
653,151,000 % + JHINELANR —F
—FE—F—BREER)E -

HE_Z-—NF+-_A=+—H
IEFEARGESRERRBRN S
HENETBERMETHHEBEARAR
A) P 5 it A 37 B 3% 77 591,000 A%
I3 A% (MRt 24() KA B
F 17 #9599,999,000 A% 1 H 3@ X
(& R aE24(i) - WA %
ZERHNBE_ZE—NE+_A
Zt+—HIEFEBET UARRE
B A% 10 B B B 1T RO BT X AR AN AR
SE9#53,151,000 A% (FF & B s
24(iii)) °

HRAEEREEZE-_Z—AFR
—E-OF+-A=+—HItHF
EWEDBITEEHETL B -
W EEAEVHE_ZT—RHF
FZE—MOE+=-_A=+—HLt
FEMNSREARN FEELF
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEEREE
Office Motor
Equipment equipment vehicles Total
BE MAERE RE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT THERT FTHERT
31 December 2015 —E-ffF
+=A=+-8
At 1 January 2015: RZZE—HF
—HA—8:
Cost AR 2,464 881 1,033 4,378
Accumulated depreciation 2iHinE (475) (398) (727) (1,600)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,989 483 306 2,778
At 1 January 2015, net of RZE—RF
accumulated depreciation —H—H"
HBRRFHIE 1,989 483 306 2,778
Additions NE 3 114 - 117
Depreciation e (237) (179) (56) (472)
Exchange realignment MEH B (81) (21) (11) (113)
At 31 December 2015, net of RNZE—RHF
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—8"
kR REHTE 1,674 397 239 2,310
At 31 December 2015: R_ZT—hF
+=A=+—8:
Cost DN 2,357 951 987 4,295
Accumulated depreciation ZFHTE (683) (554) (748) (1,985)
Net carrying amount IREVHE 1,674 397 239 2,310
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 13. WX - BE R (&)
Office Motor
Equipment  equipment vehicles Total
" WAERE 8 Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHT
31 December 2014 —E-F
+=—B=+—H
At 1 January 2014: RZZT—F
—H—8:
Cost (DN 1,983 744 1,016 3,743
Accumulated depreciation 2EHinE (246) (294) (683) (1,223)
Net carrying amount AREFE 1,737 450 333 2,520
At 1 January 2014, net of RZE—NF
accumulated depreciation —H—B"
ks Rt E 1,737 450 333 2,520
Additions =N 533 182 43 758
Depreciation E (236) (136) 62) (434)
Exchange realignment [ 7 &7 (45) (13) @8) (66)
At 31 December 2014, net of RZE—MF
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—8"
Hkr REHTE 1,989 483 306 2,778
At 31 December 2014: R-T—MF
+-A=+—8
Cost DN 2,464 881 1,033 4,378
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (475) (398) (727) (1,600)
Net carrying amount REDVFE 1,989 483 306 2,778
O
66
66
66
66
1 66
1 66060 66
6OHOO OO H6OLHOOLO 66
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 Annual Report

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in Mainland
China on a BOT basis in respect of its wastewater treatment
services. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements,
the Group has to design, construct, operate and manage
wastewater treatment facilities in Mainland China over the service
concession periods. The governmental authorities guarantee that
the Group will receive minimum annual payments in connection
with the arrangements. The Group is generally entitled to use
the wastewater treatment facilities and the related facilities (the
“Facilities”), however, the Group has the obligation to maintain the
Facilities in good condition and the Facilities will be transferred
to the relevant governmental authorities at a specified level of
serviceability upon expiry of the concession periods. The service
concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. The
BOT agreements do not grant any termination rights to any of the
contracting parties.

14.

BRF5 45 B 8 Rk

AL B C EE TP B A B
B 3005 7K B 32 AR 75 12 BOT 2 2 5T
M EZIERBR AL - RIEAR
BR AL EE - NEREZER RS
Rt iRRet  2E - RERE
I FP B 5 7K BRI AR o BT
WRAREAKE BB BRI
B&BEFEENR - ARERESR
R B )5 7K i B2 3R e I 4 A % e
(TZFE&E]) - Al NEEA
BEABZERBEN RFMRR
AR 9N SO N S VDR %
—E AR AR TS K 2B B
FIRE - IRIGH e L EET S
BEEERRE BOTLHREET
EAAIRT AT (T4 LEHE -
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AR AT R ()

R-E—HRF+-_A=+—H"
7N 52 2 £ 9 ] AP B 79 3 R AT A R
RINVSIE(ZE—WF : 518) K
BHETHE TERBETER
PR EZEZMESHS AT

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) 14.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 5 (2014: 5) service
concession arrangements on wastewater treatment with two
governmental authorities in Mainland China and a summary of the
major terms of the principal service concession arrangements, are
set out as follows:

Designed
Name of Type of processing
Name wastewater service capacity
of company treatment concession (tonnes/day) Service
as operator facility arrangement &t concession
EREER HKER Location Name of grantor FRAEHFETRE RE#N period
NARER RiEEB A=+ BRTAEH ZHEL (/%) PR R 3T
Haian Hengfa Haian Hengfa Haian County, Haian County BOT on 20,000 28 years from
BRE% Municipal Nantong City Construction wastewater 2002 to 2030
Wastewater BT Bureau* treatment and extended to
Treatment L% THEBRE BETK 2036 in 2013
Facllity #%B IR BOT 28%
(Phase | H-EE-F
BREETS AEZSC=TAFE
EUNAEE i TR_F—=%F
(—5) ERE-E-AAE
Haian Hengfa Haian Hengfa Haian County, Haian County BOT on 20,000 22.5 years from
Rl Municipal Nantong City Construction wastewater 201310 2036
Wastewater Bidm Bureau treatment 205%F
Treatment B8R THE 8RS BEAK H-_T-=Fie
Facility BRB REHBOT AEZT=RFIE
(Phase ll)
BREEMS
KRR
(Z8)
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao County, Rugao Economic BOT on 20,000 25 years from
mEEE Municipal and Nantong City and Technological wastewater 2007 to 2032
Industrial BT Development treatment and extended to
Wastewater B A Zone Administrative 57K 2035 in 2009
Treatment Committee [RE/MBOT 25%F -
Facility THEMR =TT LFRHE
(Phase ) EERAEE “TZCFH
mRBEEMI B%E TR=ZTNEF
RIZFK RRE-Z=-1F
RREZME(—H)
O
66
66
6O OO
6O OO
6HOLOHO O
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) 14. BR¥HrERBE(#E)
Designed
Name of Type of processing
Name wastewater service capacity
of company treatment concession (tonnes/day) Service
as operator facility arrangement it concession
EREER SKEE Location Name of grantor PR 4T E RE&N period
NARER Rt A g BT AEH ZHER (/%) PR T
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao County, Rugao Economic BOT on 20,000 25 years from
mEEE Municipal and Nantong City and Technological wastewater 20100 2035
Industrial BiEm Development treatment 5%
Wastewater b33 Zone Administrative 5K H-T-TFEHE
Treatment Committee R BOT “T-RFE
Facility TEHEMER
(Phase Il BERMAZR
JUES T B%g
RIZSKEE
i (—5)
Rugao Honghao Rugao Honghao Rugao County, Rugao Economic BOT on 3,500 28 years from
IREHE Heavy Metal Nantong City and Technological wastewater 2011 to 2039
Wastewater BiEm Development treatment 8%
Treatment U A Zone Administrative  BE8;57k H-T——FEsE
Facilty Committee FRIEFBOT “EDNE
MERTHESE TEHEMR
el BE i BERTFAZR
P
* The official name of the grantor is in Chinese. The English translation is
for identification purposes only.
Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the 1B IR 7N S B P 5T 32 B9 AR 745 4 7T 4
Group, the Group is granted the rights to use the property, plant T AEEERERRBGER
and equipment of the wastewater treatment facilities and certain A RS KERIERENYIE
related land during the service concession periods, but the Group E R AR A THRE T
is generally required to surrender these items of property, plant BARE B R E AN S RIS T
and equipment to the grantors at a specified level of serviceability HERE R — A R R KT E
at the end of the respective service concession periods. As at ZEWE BMELREEER
31 December 2015, the title certificates with respect to certain RETA - RZE—RF+ZH
land use rights of certain wastewater treatment facilities to which =+—H BRAXREEREER
the Group’s service concession arrangements relate have not LR E T RKERZRBNSE
been registered under the names of the relevant companies in the T ARNEEZEELRE
Group. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the ERASEEBARMNEZET o K
Group is entitled to the lawful and valid occupation or use of the NAIMESERE - BIEMHEBEBOT
buildings and land to which the above-mentioned land use rights o AEEAEAEBEIS
relate during the respective concession periods for nil consideration WL R M5 KERIEREASTRE
for providing wastewater treatment services under the relevant BOT BEBRERASEAZEE Lt
agreements. T REEANEFT R M -
0) 0)
6 060606 66006
BOOOO6HLOHOOLOLOO



14.

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue and profit were
recognised for exchanging construction services for a financial
asset amounting to HK$79,752,000 (2014: HK$16,680,000)
and HK$19,105,000 (2014: HK$1,996,000), respectively, and no
revenue (2014: Nil) was recognised for exchanging construction
services for an intangible asset. Considerations for revenue
related to the construction and operation services under BOT
arrangements were recognised as “receivables under service
concession arrangements” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

At 31 December 2014, certain wastewater treatment
concession rights of the Group comprising receivables under

BERRRERERAT
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31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

14. RETFERH(F)

HE-_Z—RA&+-_A=+—H
IEFE - 5B A 79,752,000
BT (ZZ—M4EF : 16,680,000 %
7T) }%19,105,000/8 7T ( —ZF — M
F 1 1,996,0007%8 70 ) B & E WA
MaFpt A Z2ERB LS HE
EBE(CTE—NF  #)5I
BERBRXREFEAERRAEE
WA o BEEBOT L HEIA T 23 R 4&
ERBEAEBNEZWARERE
BB RIER S [ RIS E AT
ZHE TR UG IE ] -

RZE—NE+=-_A=+—8"
AREEETI5KEBESIE(BE

service concession arrangements with a carrying amount of BRTEE /& 225,139,000,8 T A IR 7%
HK$225,139,000 were pledged to secure a bank loan granted to FEETRE R BE T M FEIGRIR) EH I
the Group. This bank loan was fully repaid in February 2015. ERE %ZISE l HIERTTE SR &
R ZBRITERER_ZE—HF
—A ,u\if(fai%
2015 2014
—E-hEF —a
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Receivables under service AR AT Lo BE T B FE GRRIE
concession arrangements 390,217 334,999
Portion classified as current assets DE AR EERED (40,410) (42,240
Non-current portion FETRENEB 1D 349,807 292,759

An ageing analysis of receivables under service concession BIFEER YRGS
arrangements, based on invoice date, is as below: THERERKIERRE DT T -
2015 2014
—E-HF —g4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Billed: ERAEE
Within 3 months 3fEAM 16,426 15,947
4 to 6 months 4Z 618 A 14,694 14,784
7 to 12 months 7E=12{8A - 5,001
31,120 35,732
Not yet billed AR ARE 359,097 299,267
390,217 334,999
1
1 1 66060
6OHOO OO H6OLHOOLO
BOLOLOLOLOLHOLOLOLOLOLLOLD
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14. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) 14. BR¥I¥WFEZRBE(#E)
Receivables under service concession arrangements are usually AR 75 5 5T R 2 BE T B B LUK IE 3B
due for settlement within 10 days after each month end. Exposures % EA HEAARK%BI0OB AR 4L
to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group o FTAEMNERRARKFER
has only two customers who are local government authorities /i EEZ AEEEEMBEPENA
in Mainland China and therefore concentration of credit risk MM BN #ER P - WFEE
exists. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit RAEdEk AEETEREZSE
enhancements over these receivable balances. In view of the fact EWFIBE R B AR E AR
that the parties to BOT arrangements are municipal governments in HiERGREE - ERBOTE
Mainland China, the directors of the Company consider the credit BERMRTA T AR B AT BT
risk is not significant. RAAREERARERARARILTE

* o
An ageing analysis of the receivables under service concession A AR B 3k B AR VE BB &9 AR 75 4
arrangements that are neither individually nor collectively considered LB TR FIER KRR S
to be impaired is as follows: HranT -
2015 2014
—E2-hfF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired AR B HA TN ARIRE 359,097 299,267
Less than 1 month past due #HI1 B A AR 6,826 6,259
1 to 3 months past due w1 = 3@ A 9,600 9,688
4 to 6 months past due wmE4E6EA 14,694 14,784
7 months to 1 year past due BEA7TEAE1EFE - 5,001
390,217 334,999
15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. TA[@HHERSE
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —T-lF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Listed equity investments, at fair value M IIERE - IRAALE 30,080 —
Listed debt securities, at fair value FHESES ?Z? A/‘ET 36,759 —
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value JE ETEKES 61,082 —
127,921 —

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s available-

FARRAREREMEEEA
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for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$555,000 (2014: Nil), of which a gain of
HK$246,000 (2014: Nil) was reclassified from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss for the year.

c C

NERNAHEESREREER
555,000 8L (ZE—HF : &) -
HepFERUREE 246,000/ T ( - =
—OF - E\) e EMEERAE

MOEEER -
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
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16. FAFARFEREMERIF

2015 2014

—F-5HF —T0mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHAT

Other receivables H Ao fE W RIE 104 181
Prepayments SEUNEO2 1,185 466
1,289 647

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default. Other receivables
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

B ESEERSRE - A
RO S RE A BT IR
R FCERR RYIA AR - HAl
JEUCR IR S E AR - A5 B R E

17. BeRBALEED

2015 2014
—F-1F —F-0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaT FET
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHEER 63,078 49,004
Time deposits T BAfF R 24,685 50,060
87,763 99,064

Cash and cash equivalents ARSI ERGHENER 2
denominated in: KR FEY :

Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR (TAR®]D 26,419 43,751
HK$ T 59,153 55,279
United States dollars (“US$”) Ex(Ex]) 2,191 34
87,763 99,064

0

60

60

660606

660606

6660606

0 0 660660600606

66066 666 6606066600606
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RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d) 17. BERAEFR/M(E)

ARBAAERARBSEME
o MR TR T B A HME B AR
PIhE  EERNEEER
T ANREEEEBEREET
SMNEXFEIRITHARE LIRS
Hib5# -

RITRESREBETRBITHERF X
B2 e K BREF B - 52 HI T 5
EHRRERHEEE N T—K2E
“EALE  RIREEAIRFR
EHERME - WAL RS EE
HATE BRT7 SRR R R ER © SRTTAS #4
K B BRI 3R 515 AR BRI | 4B K
BRI B R AFIRTT ©

BHEFRIT

RmEPR REEZEHHE
SIENFIRRNBRE DT

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within 1 month 118 A A 9,490 3,900
1 to 3 months 123f@A 482 404
Over 3 months S1EA A E 2,214 758
12,186 5,062

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of 30 days.

B REMNZBEAT BN —RR
30 BHR/EE -
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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19. HttEMREARENERRA

2015 2014

—F-5HF —T0mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Other payables H A T RIE 145 883
Accruals fEFTE A 3,308 5,541
3,543 6,424

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are

normally repayable on demand.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

H o A SR KB BB R E

BRI ERERE -

20. TE&mTIR

2015 2014

—E-1F —T—MmF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FiETT

Cross currency swap RXEMEF % 794 _

In 2015, the Group has entered into a one-year cross currency
swap contract to manage its exchange rate exposure related
to a RMB denominated interest-bearing bank loan. The cross
currency swap contract is not designated for hedge purposes
and is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in
the fair value of the non-hedging currency derivative amounting to
HK$794,000 (note 6) were charged to profit or loss during the year

(20141 Nil).

R-ZZT—RF AEEFY—8
—FHINEEGHBRAY  UE
BHSAARBTENTEBRTE
HEBNEXRER XXEKE
BMEWNWIEEEEL HAE - T)
FREBREARBETE - Y
HEBETETANAABEE S
794,000 7T (3 6) ERNFRNE

BEHR(CT—HF

Zlﬂi\i\)o
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

21. HBRHBITER

2015 2014
—E-FHE —PO4F
Maturity HK$’000 Maturity HK$'000
ZHHE FHxT ESEE=] FH&T
Current BNHA
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HEIF 2016 3,034 2015 or 12,720
—~E on demand
=—HRF
FIREK
Bank loan — unsecured  $R1TE R — &K | On demand 29,830 N/A —
BRER TEA
32,864 12,720
Non-current JEED Eq
Bank loan — secured RITER — FHEA 2017 2,336 (2016 — 2017 5,621
—E—+F —E—ﬁﬁ
Total st 35,200 18,341
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
Analysed into: RAT ST
Bank loans repayable: AR TRHEEE
RISRITE K ¢
Within one year or on demand R—FARIZEK 32,864 12,720
In the second year B_4F 2,336 3,176
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EF=FEERTF
(BRZE=-FRBERF) - 2,445
35,200 18,341
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21.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a three-year bank loan
with a carrying amount of HK$5,370,000 (2014: HK$8,591,000)
which was denominated in RMB with a fixed interest rate at
6.77% per annum. This bank loan was secured by the Group’s
land use right and properties used in the operation of the Group’s
wastewater treatment business with a total construction cost of
HK$6,047,000 which had been charged to the cost of sales in
profit or loss in the prior years of construction in accordance with
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12. The related receivables under service concession
arrangement amounted to HK$102,981,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: HK$109,860,000).

During the year, the Group has drawn down a one-year bank loan
with a carrying amount of HK$29,830,000 as at 31 December
2015, which was denominated in RMB with a fixed interest rate at
4.5% per annum. The loan is unsecured and contains a repayable
on demand clause. To mitigate the foreign currency exposure of
the loan arising from the fluctuation of the exchange rate of HK$
against RMB, the Group has entered into a one-year cross currency
swap contract (note 20) at the same time with the nominal amount
and payment terms equal to and offsetting the principal and interest
payments of the loan. The net cash flow of the loan and the cross
currency swap contract resembles a HK$ denominated loan of
HK$30,250,000 with a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum.

During the year, the Group repaid a bank loan with a carrying
amount as at 31 December 2014 of HK$9,750,000. This bank loan
was a five-year term loan, repayable on demand and denominated
in US$ with a floating interest rate at 1.25% above the US$ prime
rate per annum. As at 31 December 2014, it was secured by the
wastewater treatment concession rights comprising receivables
under service concession arrangements with a carrying amount of
HK$225,139,000 (note 14).

BERRRERERAT
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AHRBITHER ()

R-E—HRF+-_A=+—H"
AEEAB—ERMEESS5,370,000
BT =ZFHRTER(ZZ
— P4 8,591,000/ 7T) » Z &
HUAARBEEFE Z6T7T7T%H
BEEFHETE - ZERITERK
ARAEBE S KEEEREE
ML ERERMEERR &
AL P R R EREREK
K £&6,047,0008 70 ERES
B(BEERYBERERELZE D)
— REFEHRNBEEEFE
BiEmANMEEN AR - R
Z-—RAFE+-_A=+—H" BH%
B EZE THEBRERZIES
102,981,000 L ( = F — M 4F :
109,860,000 7T) °

RAFERN  AEECRR—ZF
R-_E—hE+-_HA=+—HE
M 18 429,830,000/ 7T H) — &F
HRTTER  ZEZRUAREST
B R45%METEFEMERTE -
ZERDNERBREBESERENX
BEKER - B FEF - ARER
BILHARBRE R FEHSI BN
BERINERR  AEBBEIY—
B—FHRINEETBRAL (KT
20) HEE BRI RIEREZ
BEXNAE R EMREERE
K- ERRRXXEBEBRAELN
MIREREFEMAER —2ET
FRRAE26%MAETTHENE
#030,250,00058 7T °

REAFERN AEEZEE—
ER_E—WFF+=_A=+—
H BR M (& /49,750,000 7 7T /) R
TER - ZERTERABEAER
DREENAFTHER A
EUTE BRETERMEM
1.25%HFE)FFI R B - =
T—NEFE+-_A=+—H HMN
EKEERFAE(EREEREEEAS
225,139,000 7% Jr (Bf s 14) A9 AR
A ET R HE T IR 1B
o
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21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)  21. RtBSRITiEEk(4)
The maturity profile of the loans as at the end of the reporting BIBEE KRB KR 2 BE ]
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments and BIBEREREFERNTE &
ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause, is as ZEEFRMEHRMEERE RS
follows: T
Within Between
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
1R 1E5%F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET T
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+=ZRA=+—H 34,146 2,413 36,559
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF
+=—A=1+—8 11,588 7,974 19,562
22. DEFERRED TAX 22, ERIEIRIA
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities with the EEHMIEEERBENAEKELD
net balance recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (FEERFRNE B M B AR R R E
position and the movements during the year are as follows: R RERNNEENT ¢
Temporary
differences
related
to service
Provision  concession
for major arrangements
overhauls  EMRH4F  Withholding
BA BEREBEMN taxes Total
RERE EIREMER BB M@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THAT TET FET
At 1 January 2014 W-E-mE—A—A 1,034 (25,037) (11,072) (35,075)
Credited/(charged) to profitor loss s A/ (¥18) FEREH
during the year (note 10) (HzE10) 313 (3,155) (15) (2,857)
Exchange realignment 3]l (28) 641 302 915
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-NFE+-A=1—H
and 1 January 2015 B-Z-n%5—F—A 1,319 (27,551) (10,785) (37,017)
Credited/(charged) to profitorloss 3t A/ (18 ) FREZE
during the year (note 10) (fEE10) 362 (7,692) 6,140 (1,190)
Exchange realignment 3z Rl (1) 1,485 279 1,693
0)
g g At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-A=+-H 1,610 (33,758) (4,366) (36,514)
6600
66006
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO



22.

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statements of financial position

BERRRERERAT
—E—FFEER
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22, RERIA(HE)

REJNEH HETELEMEEE
RBEDRES M BRI R EH

()

and reported as follows: WeREWT -
2015 2014
—F-1F —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&TT
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIBBEFE 36,514 37,017

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BEPBECEMEREL EFE
WA L I INE A INRIEE
EEIRARBBHRMI0%H TE
M- ZMEEA TS NE—A
—HRAER BEAR_ZEZt
F+-A=Z+—HZEEBNE
Ko P BRI EZEIINEILE
ERMERIEREERFFT R K
#y 0 B AR SR B R 4N FB 40
e mAKBEME  BAMEN
TR A5%10% ° Eitt - AN&E
B A2 E A B A A S A9 B
BARIRM—_ZEENF—H—HRE
FiT 15 & 7 i 53 K B9 jx B 80 40 T8 40
i o
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PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS 23. EXBERH
Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by BIE RSB FTE] S MRS A5 2T
the Group, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain the ek NEBEAESNET
Facilities it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or to NREELENZFRIE - B
restore the Facilities to a specified condition before they are handed HEE T RERBEKER,
over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. FR RIS FRT I R - 15 3%
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the Facilities, EEREEBRETRT AR BEE
except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in EEEEMRN - RESIIEEZS
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and FHEEE BT (BRARILDIN)
Contingent Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that RERBGTERNEITHRAEE - o
would be required to settle the present obligation at the end of the ABERAAEE T IAERKET
reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and B REZ ERBREHRETR
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. EEAMERINEEHBGESE
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised FIRR - B SRERIBEER
where appropriate. MARKRFAZ SBR[ EARE] -
B RAEFBERITUNEE K
&3] °
The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the Facilities FA - ZERENERNRESEE
during the year are as follows: ZHHmT -
Notes 2015 2014
BEE —E-fHE —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FTHER FAT
At 1 January R—H—H 5,275 4,134
Additional provision RBNEHE 1,122 1,000
Increase in discounted amounts ER 7 R P AT 1 22 A
arising from the passage of time B4 3R & FEIE AN 327 253
Exchange realignment bE &5 (284) (112)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 6,440 5,275
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24.

SHARE CAPITAL 24. &
2015 2014
—E-1F —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHAT
Authorised: VERE ¢
3,800,000,000 ordinary shares 3,800,000,000 & &% EE
of HK$0.0001 each 0.0001 /BT Ry E AR 380 380
Issued and fully paid: BEETRARE
952,000,000 (2014: 800,000,000) 952,000,000 f% (=Z —PO4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each 800,000,000 &%)
&M% E{E 0.0001 87T
FORERTEL N 95 80
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued capital is as AR B EITIRAZ S Bt a0
follows: T
Number of
ordinary shares Issued
in issue capital
BT BT
ZEKREE &N
Notes HK$’000
BE FAET
At 25 February 2014 B =Z—F
(date of incorporation) —A-+HH
(A BHR) — —
Issue of shares IR1H 31T [0} 1,000 —
Issue of shares pursuant BRI B 18
to the Share Swap RIRR (D EE1T (i) 599,999,000 60
Issue of shares pursuant BERGNDEE
to the Share Offer RIRR (D BE1T (iii) 200,000,000 20
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—F
1 January 2015 +—-A=+—~H
M_T—HE
—H—H 800,000,000 80
Issue of shares pursuant RIEAL S MR D EETT
to the Placing (iv) 160,000,000 16
Cancellation of share repurchased JESHE RER (D 25(e) (8,000,000) (1)
At 31 December 2015 il T o
+=-—A=+—H 952,000,000 95 2 2
660606
660606
6660606
16) 16) 6OH6OOLLHOO
660606 66 666LHOOLO
OOOLOOLOLLOLOOOLLOOOLLLOO O
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24,

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i

)

On the date of incorporation, one ordinary share was allotted and
issued by the Company to the initial subscriber, Mapcal Limited, at
HK$0.0001 per share and such one share was transferred to Wealthy
Sea Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Sea”) on the same day. On the same
day, 625 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to Everbest Water
Treatment Investment (Haian) Limited (“Everbest Investment Haian”) and
another 374 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to Wealthy Sea
for cash at par value. Wealthy Sea and Everbest Investment Haian were
the shareholders of Everbest Water Treatment Development prior to the
completion of the Reorganisation on 25 February 2014 in connection
with the listing of the Company.

On 25 February 2014, Everbest Investment Haian and Wealthy Sea
transferred all the shares they held in Everbest Water Treatment
Development to a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
consideration of the Company allotting and issuing 374,999,375 and
224,999,625 ordinary shares to them, respectively, in connection with
the Reorganisation (the “Share Swap”).

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange (the “Share Offer”), 200,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each were issued at a price
of HK$0.55 per ordinary share for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$110,000,000. Dealings in the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on
26 September 2014.

On 5 May 2015, 160,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.98 per ordinary share pursuant to the
top-up placing and top-up subscription agreements entered into by the
Company under the general mandate of the Company (the “Placing”)
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$156,800,000.
Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
22 April 2015 and 5 May 2015.

24.

B (#)
P -
0 REMERIAS —BEER

(i)

(i)

(iv)

F 78 A A] 3% & % 0.0001 7 T AL
B N BT T 1) 58 3R B8 A Mapcal
Limited + 1M 7% — IR f& {7 [A) A %%
HETHESEERRAA(E
&) AB - AREEEREYD
EE 5 Bl Al 8% & 317 625 %
BFEEKRBRE O8L) BRA
A ([EBHRERE]) RIT4MRE
BRTEENRIRE - HER
R EFLN—E—MFE—A
Zt+AREBERAAR E#ETEMR
SR AT A TE KIS R AR -

R-E-—WE_A-_+FA 7
BEME BRREAESTREE
D RIEB M ENEEKIEERS
BRFBRMD FARE —MEE
2EWBAR - fEAKXARIAIE
%9 Bl Bl %% K 317 374,999,375
F% &2 224,999,625 P& & 3 B% H 1£
BE(RmhER]) -

PR AR R B 3P £ (AR
MHEE]) s - §R0.0001%
JL.#9200,000,000 f& 37 & @A E
IR A 0.55 8 T B8 3
11 BIRSRECRFT A AR
3 ) /A110,000,0007 7T » AR
AR ZE-—mEAA =N
BEBRAABRER -

R-E—RFERARAE  BEAX
AR —REEIE T AR BTG
WA ERTIEHEREERN
R © 160,000,000 B% & A%
0.0001 B o g @R 2 EER
L@ 0.98 B TTHERETT([BS
EFE])  BRERBCRFTA
BERFY)A156,800,000 T °
E—AHERRAARBHAS
T-RAFENA-Z+ZHRZ-E
—HERARANRAE °



25.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

(@) OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve comprises the shareholders’ loans
amounting to HK$82,304,000 capitalised on 25 February
2014 and the reserve arising from the Share Swap.

(b) EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION RESERVE

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations with functional currencies
other than HKS$.

(c) RESERVE FUNDS

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

(d) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
REVALUATION RESERVE

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
comprises the accumulative net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of each
reporting period.

(e) TREASURY SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
repurchased and cancelled 8,000,000 of its own
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of HK$4,921,000. Upon the cancellation
of the share repurchased, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the par value of HK$1,000 and
the premium paid on the repurchase of these cancelled
shares of HK$4,920,000, including transaction costs, was
deducted from share premium of the Company.

BRERERARDA
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25. f#EfW

REFERBEFE  NEBEGRF
BEBRELEZEH2IINGREEE
I.E%Eb% o

(@) HtuGEs

HREESRER - —HO
FZAZF+REBEFER
782,304,000/ TR &
ARy B EELE O o

(b) ERKENGER

BE 320K B 1 B 1 S T 7
BEMRBERBITIAIN
e ERELN B EE
P ZERE -

(c) fEme

RIBEH T BEHAEER
A B S 2% ) AR B AR SZ Y
MEBARNEBEIZMNA
RRER RN B RFEES

(d) FIHEREEMGGER

R E RS
B R RS BRRE T
HHESBEEN AR ME
BEHERE -

(e) Efhin

REE-ZE—HF+=-A8
=t+—HIEFE  KXAQF
LA #8 X {8 4,921,000/ JT
[O] B8 W 7% 85 H Bt X FT A9
8,000,000 B B E @M -
REFHEEARMDE - K
NAM B BITRAEER
4>1,0007% 7T -t B B8 7%
EEERDIZ ARG E
4,920,000 (B HER 5
BAS) B B AR R HRR D 5
EH0BR o
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26. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 26.
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

HAEXFRREGNFESR
BB 2F

BREASFHER R A KE M
BRRIMFFBREIINT

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has a material non-controlling
interest are set out below:

Profit for the year
Percentage of allocated to
equity interest held non-controlling Accumulated balance
by non-controlling interest for the year of non-controlling
interest EROEF interest
FERERFERETSL  FEREZNERRA FERERNR N
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RE | ZENF |ZE-1E | ZZ-NF |ZZ-1f | ZTN0F
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Name of subsidiary HIBLREHRE % % TER FEL TER FEL
Haian Hengfa BRER 30 30 643 2,008 27,593 28,234

cococcoccocce
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cococococCe
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The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are before any

TR SR B QR E
e TRERBEETEMAR

inter-company eliminations: AIfEE AT
2015 2014
—F-HF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Current assets MENEE 13,774 12,497
Non-current assets ERBEE 100,034 107,066
Current liabilities mEAE (6,931) (7,720)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (14,901) (17,729)
Revenue EERA 12,295 27,489
Total expenses BRI (10,151) (20,796)
Profit for the year FRE 2,144 6,693
Total comprehensive income FRBEZEEA
for the year (2,138) 4,429
Dividends paid to non-controlling IRREE L Tl ds)
interest - —
Net cash flows from operating activities 4% & /E BNE - IR & i 8 F R 5,319 7,020
Net cash flows used in REEESFRAMNRSREFRE
investing activities (59) (244)
Net cash flows used in BEEBEANRSREFE
financing activities (3,609) (35,441)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Re KAeEEY
and cash equivalents #hn Crid) B 1,651 (28,665)




27.

28.

29.

30.

BRBRERERATA
—E-RFFR

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, shareholders’ loans
of HK$51,482,000 and HK$30,822,000 owed by the Group
to Everbest Investment Haian and Wealthy Sea, respectively,
were capitalised as other reserve upon the completion of the
Reorganisation on 25 February 2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2014 Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

The Group leases certain of its office premises under an operating
lease arrangement. The lease for these office premises is
negotiated for a term of two years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had a total future
minimum lease payment under a non-cancellable operating lease
falling due as follows:

27.

28.

29.
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meBenERME

HEz-_T—NWF+=-A=+—H
WEFE - NEED R RFEEE
& 8% OB R 51,482,000 7T
130,822,000 LR EE RN —
E-ME-_A-+HBEXEKRER
BRFTERNBEARE -

BAAR

RZEBE—HF+-_A=+—H"
AEEMETMNERKAGE (=
T ) o

EEHRARH

$Elm%w%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ§
ETHWAEDE - ZERAE
¥NHEERTEARE -

RBEHR  NEBRETAIR
HEEHE - RN ERE R
ARSZEHERBLREAT

2015 2014
—E-FRfF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Within one year —FR 184 276
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFLF(BEEEMT) - 184
184 460
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. BEAXKIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
significant capital commitments with respect of service concession
arrangements:

RMEHRR AEEHEESUTH
REFITELHEENERER
FRGE

(9

2015 2014

“E-hfF —PUeF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET
. O
Contracted, but not provided for EETAMBEREE - 35,287 66
66
6OHO O
6HOHO O
6OHLOO O
1 1 6O6HOOLOO
6OHOO OO 6OHLOLOLHOLOOLO
BOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLOLLLOLLOLLOOD
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31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

The Group has sub-leased the commercial premises located
at Units 1-3, 11th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands
Road, Hong Kong (the “Office Premises”) for use as offices
from Dragonfield Management Limited (“Dragonfield”), a
company substantially owned by Ms. Judy Chan and Ms.
Wong Shu Ying, both being beneficial shareholders of
the Company, at nil consideration during the period from
1 January 2014 to 26 August 2014. On 5 September
2014, the Group entered into a commercial premises sub-
lease agreement with Dragonfield for the continuing use
and occupation of the Office Premises after the listing,
retrospectively, effective from 27 August 2014 to 26 August
2016 at a rental of HK$276,000 per annum. The amount
charged to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2015 was HK$276,000 (2014: HK$115,000).

In addition, on 11 December 2015, the Group entered
into an administrative services sharing agreement
with Dragonfield in connection with the sharing of
administrative services, retrospectively, effective from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018. The Group was charged for
the shared administrative services on a cost basis. The
amount charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2015 was HK$1,662,000 (2014: Nil).

31.

RBA X%
@ RZE—HOF—H—HB=E

—E—FENAZ+KH
Hif AEEBENUZERE
AEEHEBEARAR(EE
A (AEFZE R EER
ZE(FEHABARFNE
mRR)EEHRENRAF)
DA R EBER 2057
ERHPAOIEI3ENR
BYE(HAZEME]) B
ERAE - RZTB M4
NARH  AEBHEEH
R EAMESMRE
NEHEFERREARAE
WE WEBPER B=
TE-MENA-++HE
E-E-RNENAZ+R
Hilk - F#% &276,000%8
TeBE-_ETE—RE+=
A=+—BLt&E 518
I HIBR ) © 58 5 276,000 78
7T(=ZZ— P4 : 115,000
BIT) °

oy RZE—RE+=
A+—H XEBEEmH
TR HEEHE LT
BERBEEZHE LB
PER B -_FTE—1F
tA—HEZE_ZT—NF
ANA=t+HIE- HERA=E
17 IR 76 452 Ak 7R 2 1) 7K
EEKE -BHE-_ZT—H
F+-_A=+—HI#F
- BE=IRNeER
1,662,000 7t ( — & — 4
F4E)o



31.

32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

BRERRERERAA
— T RFFR

(@)
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3. FBMAERZ(E)
by AEEBFEEBEAENH

il

2015 2014

—E-FRfF —E-mE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Short term employee benefits EHESRET 2,826 2,166

Post-employment benefits BERE R A 89 55
Total compensation paid to key X TEBERAER

management personnel FOE=a FCEE 2,915 2,221

Further details of compensation of directors’ emoluments
are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transaction disclosed in note (a) above also
constitute continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

EEMEME—PHFEBEH
REATEERRMIFES

XY EE () TR R BV BB 5 2 5
B LR B FE14AZFTE &
MSERERS -

32. BENASHERIA

R-_ZE—RF+_-_A=+—8"
ZERlem T AMERERNT

FINANCIAL ASSETS eMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BRR AHHE
EWRIE SREE et
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FBT FET F&T
Available-for-sale investments AHfEERE — 127,921 127,921
Receivables under service ARSI RELHET
concession arrangements HY e U R IE 390,217 — 390,217
Financial assets included in SFAFER R - e
prepayments, deposits and R E Ath FE WK IR
other receivables (note 16) e rEE (Misk16) 104 — 104
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEEY 87,763 — 87,763
10)
478,084 127,921 606,005 g g
606060
606060
60660606
16 16 606006066060
60600 6006 HOOHHOOLLHOLO
OOODHOLOHOOLLDLOOOLOLOLLLOHOO
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32.

33.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d) 32. BRENBSHEMIA(HE)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES eMaR
Financial
liability at
fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised
g ok by cost
RARE RS A
SIBR®Y SIBREY Total
LY =R cREE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade payables B S ERIR - 12,186 12,186
Financial liabilities included in T AR A RN FIA
other payables and accruals L ERNEREBE
(note 19) (FF5E19) - 3,543 3,543
Derivative financial instrument PTEEMIA 794 — 794
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B R1TER — 35,200 35,200
794 50,929 51,723

As at 31 December 2014, all the financial assets and liabilities of
the Group were loans and receivables and financial liabilities at
amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the current
portion of receivables under service concession arrangements,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

33.

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H"
rEENEHEcREERAEED
R B E TR % FE W GRIE LA R 3 8 6
AT ERNEREE -
EMITANLARERARE
Bk

AEESHTAMNEAEREAR
BEEERE -

EIEEDHERB S ETEET
B WRKIR - A EURIE ~ R
ERREEEY BEHEMR
R HAb RN RIE M ERTTE
KMo AR EREKREE
HE TEHRZETANHE
IREFTEL »



33.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer.
At each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

The fair values of non-current portion of receivables under service
concession arrangements and interest-bearing bank borrowing
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowing as at
31 December 2015 and 2014 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The Group enters into a derivative financial instrument with a
financial institution with an investment grade credit rating. The
derivative financial instrument, which is a cross currency swap, is
measured using valuation techniques similar to swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amount of the cross
currency swap is the same as its fair value.
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AR TS 45 BT HE 22 B T B0 FE MR IR 3R
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BEVERERFEREABER
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=t+—B XEEXRSHFTER
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AHEEREZARBTIIETS
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. E#MIANAOARERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) Bk (#)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY LRERER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRINTAEEEHITAENAR
of the Group’s financial instruments: EEE =

As at 31 December 2015 RZF—AF+-HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
BUTARGENAAE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WEER Iz IE
ik AER FABER
fRE BAYE WAYE Total
(E—-%) (E=#) (B=R) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET TR TR
Avallable-for-sale investments; AfHERE
Equity investments R & 30,080 — — 30,080
Debt investments EBRE 97,841 — — 97,841
127,921 — — 127,921
As at 31 December 2015 R-F—AFF+=-H=4+—H
Fair value measurement using
BUTARFENAAE
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WER Iz IE
[k AER TABR
HHRE BAYE BAYE Total
(E-%) (=) (B=H) @t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5 TR TR THT TET
606
2 2 50 Derivative financial instrument THEERIA - 794 - 794
66006
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO
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34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Cont’d)

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014,

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2014 Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors of the Company review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with
a floating interest rate.

Since the Group did not have any long-term debt obligations as at
31 December 2015, the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is
minimal.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, in respect of a floating
rate bank borrowing, a 50 basis point increase/decrease in interest
rate at 31 December 2014 would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit before tax for that year by HK$49,000.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Individual companies in Mainland China within the Group
have limited foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are
denominated in the same currency as the functional currency
of the operations in which they relate. However, as the principal
subsidiaries mainly carried out transactions in RMB, therefore any
appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against RMB will affect the
Group’s consolidated financial position and be reflected in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

BRERERARDA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, individual companies in Hong
Kong within the Group have translational currency exposure
because available-for-sale investments of HK$127,921,000
were denominated in US$ and an interest-bearing bank loan of
HK$29,830,000 was denominated in RMB.

The Group considers that the currency exposures in related to
the US$ are insignificant as HK$ is pegged to the US$. In order to
manage the foreign currency exposure of the RMB denominated
bank loan in Hong Kong, the Group has entered into a cross
currency swap contract to minimise its impact in profit or loss.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will
cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation.

The main credit risk exposure to the Group arises from the
default or delinquency in principal payment of receivables under
service concession arrangements. The Group has concentration
of credit risk in relation to receivables under service concession
arrangements as the Group transacts only with two customers
who are municipal governments in Mainland China. The receivables
under service concession arrangements are monitored on an
ongoing basis. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
credit risk is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets
of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and
financial assets included in other receivables, the Group’s exposure
to the credit risk arises from the default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position.

34.
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34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  34.

POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK

BRERRERERAA
— T RFFR

Notes to Financial Statements

The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

B RS HR AR Y &

31 December 2016 —F—hF+_=-A=+—H

CHEABEEARRBE
(#)

I EN R & W PR

AEENBERERARF/EERSBIK
R HYRBRRGIEIERDES
e R R B ARG E] - ARE
RAEERFTIARRE AmEE

NBRTHARBBRNRGELE - K
SERHREMRO T E EDH

(9 |

IERIMT

Within 1
year or on Between
demand 1and 2
1FR years Total
RIRER 1E25F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT T FH&T
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZE—-HF
+=A=+—~
Trade payables 2 S ENFOE 12,186 - 12,186
Other payables and accruals H b s OB K FEETE 3,543 - 3,543
Derivative financial instrument TTHEERmIE 794 - 794
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B R1TIE 33,151 2,413 35,564
49,674 2,413 52,087
Within 1
year or on Between Between
demand 1and 2 2and 5
1ER years years Total
HIREK 1522%F 2E5F st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MF
+=A=+-A
Trade payables B 5 REMAFIE 5,062 - - 5,062
Other payables and accrual Hip S5 K ERT B 6,424 — — 6,424
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T ESRTTRE 13,227 3,477 2,525 19,229
24,713 3,477 2,525 30,715 5 2
606
660606
660606
6660606
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 34. £ EAMREERHEREE
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POLICIES (Cont’d)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total debt by total equity. Total debt
comprises the interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group’s policy
is to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

(#)
REEH

AEEEAEENTIRBERE/R
EAREBAFERLELEELS
AR GFAENEREL R HE
ES

AEERBEBERAESHEREE
BAEREBEBRELHARE - BHERS
FAEERNERE  AEBUHARL
HFREMNRKS - MEERLEE
AEBETHER BHE-T—RHF
rZFE—M&F+-A=+—HIE
FE O ETEEANBEZE BEKH
BEWEES) -

AEBREEABL R (MEHR
B AR SRR E) EEEAR -
ERFAEBRABRITENR K
SEHABRRBEEABLRE
FRBIEKF - RFEHRNE
ERELERET

2015 2014

—E-HF —=—mEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Total debt B 18%R 35,200 18,341
Total equity T AREE 515,135 364,829
Gearing ratio BEABLLE 0.07 0.05
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE AT AR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|ERREARR BT BMRNR
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: FWERIOT -
2015 2014
—F-1F —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FA&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARAIRE 113,781 113,781
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 127,921 —
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 241,702 113,781
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Prepayment FEfFRIAE 173 _
Due from subsidiaries FEUR B A 7] 68,309 16,571
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESZEY 34,030 82,765
Total current assets BRENEE 102,512 99,336
CURRENT LIABILITIES meaE
Accrual JEEtER 1,885 1,350
Due to a subsidiary FEAT — T B A A - 1
Total current liabilities wREBE 1,885 1,351
NET CURRENT ASSETS B EEFE 100,627 97,985
Net assets BEFRE 342,329 211,766
EQUITY S
Issued capital BT 95 80
Reserves i 342,234 211,686
Total equity k) 342,329 211,766
0)
606
606
660606
660606
6660606
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. EAFMIMBRAER(F)
COMPANY (Cont’d)
Note: BisE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARRBEZHRENT -
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation
Share reserve Treasury Retained
premium FHHERE shares profits Total
B AR ME EftFEE EFRG REGEFI st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAEL FHT FAT
At 25 February 2014 RZE-NF-_A=+HH
(date of incorporation) (IR BE) - - - - —
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREEBALRE
income for the year — — — 28,346 28,346
Issue of shares pursuant to the RIERR D BHRH AR (D B AT
Share Swap (note 24(ii) (BY&E 244i)) 113,720 - - - 113,720
Issue of shares pursuant to the RER DB SRR EST
Share Offer (note 24(ii) (WiEE 24(ii)) 109,980 - - - 109,980
Share issue expenses GGl (10,360) - - - (10,360)
Interim special 2014 dividend ZE—-NFEP RIS
(note 11) (BFEE11) (30,000) - - - (30,000)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—MEF
+=-A=+—H 183,340 - — 28,346 211,686
Profit for the year FREF - - - 4,182 4,182
Change in fair value of AHHERENARE
available-for-sale investments #E) - (555) - - (555)
Reclassification adjustments FPAB R E R
for gains on disposal MEHDERAR
included in profit or loss - (246) - - (246)
Total comprehensive income FARZEBALE
for the year - (801) — 4,182 3,381
Issue of shares pursuant to the RER SRR (D EAT
Placing (note 24(iv)) (M5 24(v)) 156,784 - - - 156,784
Placing expenses [R5+ (5,657) - - - (5,657)
Share repurchase (note 25(€)) P& 17 12188 (P 31 25(¢)) - - (4,921) - (4,921)
Cancellation of shares HEEREARD
repurchased (note 25(e)) (HI7E25(8)) (4,920) - 4,921 - 1
Interim 2015 dividend “E-RFHERE
(note 11) (BFzE11) - - - (19,040) (19,040)
As 31 December 2015 RZT—-1%F
+=-A=+-A 329,547 (801) - 13,488 342,234
s 36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 36. MEHETAIHLE
2 2 The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue R=ZZF-—A"F=A+tN\8  B%
2 2 2 2 by the board of directors on 18 March 2016. WRESESSHAERETE -
660600
6O6OOOHD D 0) 0)
OHOOLOLHLHOO OO 66006
BOOOOLOOOLLOLOOLLLOHOOOO



The consolidated results of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interest of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
are extracted from the published audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013 and of the consolidated assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interest of the Group as at 31 December
2011, 2012 and 2013 has been extracted from the prospectus issued on
12 September 2014 in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 26
September 2014.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

BRERRERARDA
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFETBEHME

BEBRERIEBRERAR(ARA D RE
MEBAR (HE [ AEEDHE-ZT—h
FER_EBE-ME+_A=+—HILFE
MG EEBEURAEER-_ZE—AF
F—E-NE+-_A=+—HHHEEE
E-BEREERESBESEE T
RS BAIZ BTG TRK o

REBEBE-_T——F —_T—Z-FK
TE-=F+-A=t+—HIEENLE
BEBEURAEBRR_Z—F - =%
——FRZE—=F+ZA=+—HH
REEE - BERFERESMERSE
BH#EA-_Z—NFAA+_HABLK
REBRHR_TE—NFNA-+BE
BERBMAERPER ETMAIBIRER -

ATEIY TEREEZTBRERN—

statements. s
RESULTS xR
Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-—A=+—HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE | ZE—mNF —ZT—=F —ZT——-F ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHETT FET T
Revenue EELON 145,462 85,183 65,090 46,900 44,560
Profit before tax BRIEAT &R A 36,229 22,136 47,974 34,007 31,325
Income tax FrisHiE e,
credit/(expenses) (F%) 3,920 (10,861) (14,080) (6,973) (5,784)
Profit for the year FREF 40,149 11,275 33,894 27,034 25,541
¢ ¢ é 60
' X)) ' X)) é 600
¢ N EEEEEEEEEXX)

[ N N 2 2N 2 N 2 2
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

RE  ARKFZERER

INTEREST
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RHE | ZT—NMF —T—=F —FT——F T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FAT FAT FiET FHET
Total assets BEE 610,439 437,796 425,682 433,969 362,189
Total liabilities BEfE (95,304) (72,967) (210,430) (260,897) (218,006)
Non-controling interest ~ 3F3%p&AE S (27,593) (28,234) (26,906) (24,521) (22,775)
487,542 336,595 188,346 148,551 121,408
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